
Oak Creek Community Development District 

Meeting Location at District Office: 
2654 Cypress Ridge Boulevard, Suite 101 

Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 

www.oakcreekcdd.org 

Board of Supervisors  
�  David Gerald, Chairman          �   Mark Vega, District Manager 
�  Sam Watson, Vice Chairman             �   Vivek Babbar, District Counsel 
�  Ryan Gilbertsen, Assistant Secretary                   �   Robert Dvorak, District Engineer 
�  Adam Silva, Assistant Secretary 
�  Lisa Vaile, Assistant Secretary 

Meeting Agenda 
June 20, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 

***************************MASKS ARE REQUIRED*************************** 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Audience Comments (3) minute time limit
4. Consent Agenda

A. Minutes of the March 21, 2022 Meeting [Page 4]
B. Acceptance of the Financial Report [Page 8]
C. Acceptance of the Audit for Fiscal Year 2021 [Page 23]
D. JMT Labor Rates [Page 62]
E. Ratification of Sidewalk Grindings by Inframark [Page 64]
F. Ratification of Pressure Washing by Heat Wave [Page 68]
G. Report on Number of Registered Voters – 1,132 [Page 92]
H. Approval of Triangle Pool Increase [Page 94
I. Ratification of Tri-Care Services – ADA Bi-Level Water Drinking Fountain [Page 97]

5. Staff Reports
A. District Counsel
B. District Engineer
C. District Manager

i. Proposals – (No decision needed to be made today, these are just for
reference)
a. Proposal for Solar Aerator [Page 104]
b. Proposal for Basketball Court Resurface [Page 121]
c. Proposal for Tree Work on Cliffcreek Court [Page 123]
d. Proposal for Irrigation Work in Conjunction with Tree Work on

Cliffcreek Court [Page 125]
ii. Discussion of Proposed Access System [Page 127] (Our current access system

crashes constantly and cannot be upgraded, secondly, I recommend we shut
the pool cards in December and ask residents to come to the pool to reactivate
cards. Prior individuals that managed the system issued card without names
are there are over 100 blank cards and a total of 2,800 cards in the system
for our 550-home community.)

Agenda Page #1

http://www.oakcreekcdd.org/


Oak Creek Community Development District 

Meeting Location at District Office: 
2654 Cypress Ridge Boulevard, Suite 101 

Wesley Chapel, FL 33544 

www.oakcreekcdd.org 

iii. Discussion of Lightning Alert System [Page 131] (This system is in place at
the pool and work Great! We did not pay for the hardware or anything for 6
months – it’s a small cost that we can absorb in the budget if the Board wants
to keep the system.)

iv. Discussion of Best Practice for Community Dog Parks [Page 133]
v. Discussion of Pool Card Suspension

D. Aquatics Report – May 2022 [Page 137]
6. Supervisor Requests and Comments
7. Adjournment

Next Meeting August 15, 2022 - Reminder there is no July meeting

Agenda Page #2

http://www.oakcreekcdd.org/


Fourth Order of Business 

Agenda Page #3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4A. 
  

Agenda Page #4



  
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
OAK CREEK 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Oak Creek Community 

Development District was held on Monday, March 21, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Inframark Office, 

2654 Cypress Ridge Road, Suite 101, Wesley Chapel, Florida. 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 
  
 David Gerald      Chairman 
 Sam Watson     Vice Chairman 
 Adam Silva     Assistant Secretary  
 Lisa Vaile     Assistant Secretary 
   
 Also, present: 
  
 Mark Vega     District Manager 
 Robert Dvorak     District Engineer (via phone)  
 Residents 
   
 The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken. 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order / Roll Call  
• Mr. Vega called the meeting to order and called the roll.  

 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Pledge of Allegiance 
• The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments on Agenda Items (3) 

Minute Time Limit 
• None.   

 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consent Agenda 

A. Minutes of February 21, 2022 Audit Committee and Regular Meeting  
B. Acceptance of the Financial Report 
C. GE Resolution 2022-2  
  

On MOTION by Mr. Silva seconded by Mr. Watson, with all in favor, the 
Consent Agenda was approved as amended. 4/0 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. District Counsel 

• None.   

Agenda Page #5



March 21, 2022  Oak Creek CDD 

 2 

 

B. District Engineer 
 i. Discussion of Stormwater Needs Analysis  

• Mr. Dvorak updated the Board on the Stormwater Report; it may be done by the end of 

April.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Gerald seconded by Mr. Watson, with all in favor, the 
Pond 1 outfall structure report in an amount to exceed of $4,000, with the 
vendor to be selected by the District Engineer after several quotes are 
obtained was approved.  4/0 

 

• The new parking lot light project invoice is generated and Inframark will pay once 

received.   

• The crosswalk has been approved and is on the list to get done.   

• The Spring Oak Trail bridge infrastructure is still being reviewed by the county.   

 

C. District Manager 
i. Presentation of Proposed Budget for FY 2022/2023 and Setting the Public 

Hearing   
 

On MOTION by Mr. Watson seconded by Mr. Gerald, with all in favor, 
Resolution 2022-3 a resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the Oak 
Creek Community Development District approving a proposed operation 
and maintenance budget for fiscal year 2022/2023; setting a public hearing 
thereon pursuant to Florida law; addressing transmittal; posting, and 
publication requirements; and providing an effective date was adopted.  4/0 
 
ii. Proposals  

  a. Blue Water Aquatic Management Agreement  
 

On MOTION by Mr. Silva seconded by Mr. Gerald, with all in favor, to 
terminate SOLitude and hire Blue Water Aquatics was approved. 4/0 

 

  b. LMP #76491 – Bahia Sod at Dog Park  
• The consensus of the Board is to move forward with the Bahia sod.   

 

  c. LMP # 76538 – Cleanup Wood Line in Common Area  
• This task was completed in-house by Bruce.   

Agenda Page #6



March 21, 2022  Oak Creek CDD 

 3 

 

  d. Miracle – Playground Stairs and Swing  
 

On MOTION by Mr. Watson seconded by Mr. Silva, with all in favor, the 
Miracle proposal for playground stairs and swing was approved. 4/0 

 

  e. Miracle – Playground Parts  
• This item was not voted on as this proposal was included in the previous quote.   

 
On MOTION by Ms. Vaile seconded by Mr. Gerald, with Ms. Vaile, Mr. 
Gerald and Mr. Silva voting aye and Mr. Watson voting nay, the Hernandez 
fence pending final approval if Mr. Hernandez pays the legal and 
engineering fees associated with preparing the easement variance was 
approved.  3/1 
 

• Mr. Vega will present this to Mr. Hernandez and wait for his response.   
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Comments 
• Ms. Vaile requested Bruce cut back the area on Pickford Court when he returns from his 

leave of absence.   

• Mr. Watson requested a solar aerator quote for Ponds 11a and 11b and requested this 

proposal and the tree removal proposal be placed under old business for future reference.   

 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment  

With there being no other business, 
 

On MOTION by Mr. Watson seconded by Mr. Gerald, with all in favor, the 
meeting was adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 4/0 

 
 
 
 
 ___________________ 
 Mark Vega, Secretary 

Agenda Page #7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4B 

Agenda Page #8



Oak Creek

Prepared by:

Community Development District

Financial Report

April 30, 2022

Agenda Page #9



OAK CREEK
Community Development District

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet - All Funds …………………………………………………. Page 1

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

General Fund …………………………………………………. Page 2 - 4

Debt Service Fund …………………………………………………. Page 5

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments …………………………………………………. Page 6

Cash and Investment Report …………………………………………………. Page 7

Bank Reconciliation …………………………………………………. Page 8 

Check Register …………………………………………………. Page 9 - 10 

Table of Contents

Agenda Page #10



Oak Creek

April 30, 2022

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Agenda Page #11



OAK CREEK

Community Development District

Balance Sheet

April 30, 2022

Governmental Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION GENERAL FUND

SERIES 2015 DEBT 

SERVICE FUND TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash - Checking Account 135,546$                -$                            135,546$               

Due From Other Funds - 16,034 16,034

Investments:

Money Market Account 397,669 - 397,669

Acquisition Fund - 7,911 7,911

Escrow A - 67,869 67,869

Interest Fund (A-2) - 25,725 25,725

Prepayment Fund (A-2) - 13,593 13,593

Reserve Fund (A-1) - 153,927 153,927

Reserve Fund (A-2) - 51,978 51,978

Revenue Fund A - 91,694 91,694

Sinking Fund (A-1) - 170,000 170,000

Sinking Fund (A-2) - 50,000 50,000

Prepaid Items 6,951 - 6,951

Deposits 3,355 - 3,355

TOTAL ASSETS 543,521$                648,731$                1,192,252$            

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 3,595$                    11,359$                  14,954$                 

Accrued Expenses 5,007 - 5,007

Accrued Taxes Payable 153 - 153

Due To Other Funds 16,034 - 16,034

TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,789 11,359 36,148

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items 6,951 - 6,951

Deposits 3,355 - 3,355

Restricted for:

Debt Service - 637,372 637,372

Assigned to:

Operating Reserves 73,245 - 73,245

Reserves-A/C 1,000 - 1,000

Reserves - Other 46,025 - 46,025

Reserves-Path 4,000 - 4,000

Reserves - Pools 4,000 - 4,000

Unassigned: 380,156 - 380,156

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 518,732$                637,372$                1,156,104$            

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 543,521$                648,731$                1,192,252$            

Page 1

Agenda Page #12



OAK CREEK
Community Development District

General Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF APR-22

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 300$                  217$                     72.33% 49$                    

Interest - Tax Collector 100 1 1.00% -

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 598,231 593,760 99.25% 6,528

Special Assmnts- Discounts (23,929) (23,226) 97.06% -

Other Miscellaneous Revenues - 1,274 0.00% 90

Access Cards 250 135 54.00% 30

TOTAL REVENUES 574,952 572,161 99.51% 6,697

EXPENDITURES

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 10,000 4,400 44.00% 1,000

FICA Taxes 765 337 44.05% 77

ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate 600 - 0.00% -

ProfServ-Dissemination Agent 1,000 - 0.00% -

ProfServ-Engineering 30,000 5,318 17.73% 1,488

ProfServ-Legal Services 13,000 1,264 9.72% -

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 46,149 26,920 58.33% 3,846

ProfServ-Property Appraiser 150 - 0.00% -

ProfServ-Trustee Fees 3,233 3,233 100.00% -

ProfServ-Web Site Maintenance 3,392 2,566 75.65% 428

Auditing Services 3,000 3,325 110.83% -

Postage and Freight 200 84 42.00% 10

Rentals & Leases 500 - 0.00% -

Public Officials Insurance 2,729 2,430 89.04% -

Printing and Binding 500 7 1.40% -

Legal Advertising 1,000 102 10.20% -

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 11,965 11,411 95.37% 131

Misc-Contingency 50 100 200.00% 61

Office Supplies 125 - 0.00% -

Annual District Filing Fee 175 175 100.00% -

Total Administration 128,533 61,672 47.98% 7,041

Public Safety

Contracts-Security Services 3,696 2,156 58.33% 308

Total Public Safety 3,696 2,156 58.33% 308

Electric Utility Services

Electricity - Streetlights 23,000 13,560 58.96% 1,965

Utility Services 10,000 8,421 84.21% 987

Total Electric Utility Services 33,000 21,981 66.61% 2,952

For the Period Ending April 30, 2022
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Page 2

Agenda Page #13



OAK CREEK
Community Development District

General Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF APR-22

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

For the Period Ending April 30, 2022
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Garbage/Solid Waste Services

Utility - Refuse Removal 698 434 62.18% 63

Solid Waste Disposal Assessm. 680 824 121.18% (63)

Total Garbage/Solid Waste Services 1,378 1,258 91.29% -

Water-Sewer Comb Services

Utility Services 10,000 7,109 71.09% 828

Total Water-Sewer Comb Services 10,000 7,109 71.09% 828

Flood Control/Stormwater Mgmt

Contracts-Aquatic Control 24,660 14,385 58.33% 2,055

Stormwater Assessment 894 885 98.99% -

R&M-Storm Water - Pond 8,000 16,808 210.10% 382

Total Flood Control/Stormwater Mgmt 33,554 32,078 95.60% 2,437

Other Physical Environment

Contracts-Landscape 84,000 49,105 58.46% 7,105

Liability/Property Insurance 9,176 8,174 89.08% -

R&M-Entry Feature 20,000 - 0.00% -

R&M-Irrigation 7,000 1,048 14.97% 45

R&M-Mulch 13,320 13,320 100.00% -

R&M-Plant&Tree Replacement 20,000 2,150 10.75% (625)

Total Other Physical Environment 153,496 73,797 48.08% 6,525

Capital Expenditures & Projects

Misc-Holiday Lighting 6,800 6,800 100.00% -

Misc-Contingency 13,680 3,000 21.93% -

Total Capital Expenditures & Projects 20,480 9,800 47.85% -

Road and Street Facilities

R&M-Bike Paths & Asphalt 1,200 - 0.00% -

R&M-Parking Lots 1,200 - 0.00% -

R&M-Sidewalks 15,000 - 0.00% -

R&M-Pressure Washing 12,000 - 0.00% -

Total Road and Street Facilities 29,400 - 0.00% -

Clubhouse, Parks and Recreation

ProfServ-Field Management 7,680 4,480 58.33% 640

Contracts-Mgmt Services 10,296 6,006 58.33% 858

Contracts-Pools 9,540 5,885 61.69% 905

Contractual Maint. Services 45,000 10,823 24.05% 275

Page 3

Agenda Page #14



OAK CREEK
Community Development District

General Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF APR-22

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

For the Period Ending April 30, 2022
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Telephone/Fax/Internet Services 1,800 1,095 60.83% 151

R&M-Facility 2,500 3,415 136.60% 1,720

R&M-Pools 7,000 1,189 16.99% 139

R&M Basketball Courts 7,000 - 0.00% -

R&M-Playground 1,000 - 0.00% -

Op Supplies - General 4,500 2,065 45.89% -

Total Clubhouse, Parks and Recreation 96,316 34,958 36.30% 4,688

Reserves

Reserve - Other 65,100 - 0.00% -

Total Reserves 65,100 - 0.00% -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & RESERVES 574,953 244,809 42.58% 24,779

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures (1) 327,352 (18,082)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance (1) - 0.00% -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1) - 0.00% -

Net change in fund balance (1)$                     327,352$             (18,082)$           

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2021) 191,380 191,380

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 191,379$           518,732$             

Page 4

Agenda Page #15



OAK CREEK
Community Development District

Series 2015 Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL YTD ACTUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE AS A % OF APR-22

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET ACTUAL ADOPTED BUD ACTUAL

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 25$                    11$                       44.00% 3$                      

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 437,163 433,894 99.25% 4,770

Special Assmnts- Discounts (17,487) (16,973) 97.06% -

TOTAL REVENUES 419,701 416,932 99.34% 4,773

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 8,743 8,338 95.37% 95

Total Administration 8,743 8,338 95.37% 95

Debt Service

Principal Debt Retirement A-1 170,000 - 0.00% -

Principal Debt Retirement A-2 50,000 - 0.00% -

Interest Expense Series A-1 135,738 67,869 50.00% -

Interest Expense Series A-2 51,450 25,725 50.00% -

Total Debt Service 407,188 93,594 22.99% -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 415,931 101,932 24.51% 95

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures 3,770 315,000 4,678

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance 3,770 - 0.00% -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3,770 - 0.00% -

Net change in fund balance 3,770$               315,000$             4,678$               

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2021) 322,372 322,372

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 326,142$           637,372$             

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Period Ending April 30, 2022

Page 5

Agenda Page #16



April 30, 2022

Oak Creek

Community Development District

Supporting Schedules

Agenda Page #17



OAK CREEK
Community Development District

Discount / Gross
Date Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Amount General Debt Service

Received Received Amount Costs Received Fund Fund

Assessments Levied FY 2022 1,035,395$       598,232$           437,163$           
Allocation % 100% 58% 42%

11/04/21 6,313$               357$                 129$               6,799$              3,928$               2,871$               

11/12/21 34,133 1,451 697 36,280 20,962 15,318

11/19/21 27,887 1,186 569 29,642 17,126 12,515

12/02/21 777,635 33,027 15,870 826,532 477,555 348,977

12/09/21 56,640 2,408 1,156 60,204 34,785 25,419

12/17/21 27,123 1,135 554 28,811 16,647 12,165

01/07/21 12,991 410 265 13,666 7,896 5,770

02/04/22 6,079 150 124 6,352 3,670 2,682

03/09/22 7,834 75 160 8,070 4,662 3,407

04/08/22 11,072 0 226 11,298 6,528 4,770

TOTAL 967,706$           40,199$            19,749$          1,027,654$       593,760$           433,894$           

% COLLECTED 99% 99% 99%

TOTAL O/S 7,741$             4,473$              3,268$              

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - Pasco County Tax Collector
(Monthly Collection Distributions)

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2022

ALLOCATION BY FUND

Page 6

Agenda Page #18



OAK CREEK
Community Development District All Funds

Account Name Bank Name Investment Type Maturity Yield Balance

GENERAL FUND

Checking Account - Operating BankUnited Checking n/a 0.00% 135,546

Public Funds Money Market BankUnited Money Market n/a 0.25% 397,669

$533,215

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Series 2015 Acquisition Fund US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% $7,911

Series 2015 Escrow A US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 67,869

Series 2015 Interest Fund A-2 US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 25,725

Series 2015 Prepayment  A-2 US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 13,593

Series 2015 Reserve Fund A-1 US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 153,927

Series 2015 Reserve Fund A-2 US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 51,978

Series 2015 Revenue Fund A US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 91,694

Series 2015 Sinking Fund A-1 US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 170,000

Series 2015 Sinking Fund A-2 US Bank Commercial Paper n/a 0.02% 50,000

$632,697

$1,165,912

April 30, 2022
Cash and Investment Report

Total - All Funds

Subtotal-General Fund

Subtotal-Debt Service Fund

Page 7

Agenda Page #19



Posting 
Date

Document 
Type

Document 
No. Description Amount

Cleared 
Amount Difference

Outstanding Checks

1/21/2022 Payment 518 SAMUEL  E. WATSON, JR 184.70 0.00 184.70

3/3/2022 Payment 540 SAMUEL  E. WATSON, JR 184.70 0.00 184.70

3/4/2022 Payment 545 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 
PROFESSIONALS

7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00

3/28/2022 Payment 555 SAMUEL  E. WATSON, JR 184.70 0.00 184.70

4/25/2022 Payment DD3632 150.98 0.00 150.98

4/26/2022 Payment 577 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 
PROFESSIONALS

800.00 0.00 800.00

4/26/2022 Payment 578 LOUIS SMITH 1,720.00 0.00 1,720.00

4/29/2022 Payment 579 INFRAMARK, LLC 5,414.73 0.00 5,414.73

4/29/2022 Payment 580 LISA M. VAILE 184.70 0.00 184.70

4/29/2022 Payment 581 SAMUEL  E. WATSON, JR 184.70 0.00 184.70

4/29/2022 Payment 582 ADAM T. SILVA 184.70 0.00 184.70

4/29/2022 Payment 583 DAVID J. GERALD 184.70 0.00 184.70

4/29/2022 Payment 584 RYAN M. GILBERTSEN 184.70 0.00 184.70

Total Outstanding Checks...................................................................................................................... 16,563.31 16,563.31

G/L Balance 135,546.22

Bank Account No. 0130

Statement No. 04-22

Statement Date 4/30/2022

Statement Balance 152,109.53G/L Balance (LCY) 135,546.22

Difference 0.00

Ending G/L Balance 135,546.22

Subtotal 135,546.22

Outstanding Deposits 0.00

Negative Adjustments 0.00

Positive Adjustments 0.00

Subtotal 152,109.53

Outstanding Checks 16,563.31

Ending Balance 135,546.22

Differences 0.00

Bank United GF 

Bank Reconciliation

Oak Creek CDD

FRONTIER FLORIDA

Page 8

Agenda Page #20



Fund 

No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

GENERAL FUND - 001

CHECK # 568
001 04/12/22 AP HOME SOLUTIONS INV-20221504 CLEAN UP OF WETLANDS/CONSERVATION AREA R&M-Plant&Tree Replacement 546170-53908 $500.00

CHECK # 569
001 04/12/22 AQUA TRIANGLE 1 CORP 2033 MAR '22 - POOL SERVICE 3X PER WEEK. Contracts-Pools 534078-57231 $905.00

CHECK # 570
001 04/12/22 BERGER, TOOMBS, ELAM & FRANK  357197 AUDIT FYE 9/30/21 Auditing Services 532002-51301 $3,325.00

CHECK # 571
001 04/12/22 GOLDEN EYE TECHNOLOGY, LLC 19222APR APRIL SECURITY MONITORING Contracts-Security Services 534037-52001 $308.00

CHECK # 572
001 04/12/22 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROFESSIONALS 166789 APRIL 2022 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Landscape 534050-53908 $7,105.00
001 04/12/22 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROFESSIONALS 166985 TREE REMOVAL AND STUMP GRINDING R&M-Plant&Tree Replacement 546170-53908 $300.00

Check Total $7,405.00

CHECK # 573
001 04/12/22 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT PI-A00788022 LAKE & POND AERATOR MAINT SVCS 04/01/22-09/30/22 R&M-Storm Water - Pond 546086-53801 $381.99

CHECK # 575
001 04/19/22 AQUA TRIANGLE 1 CORP 107461 CLEANED AND DEGREASED FILTER SYSTEM R&M-Pools 546074-57231 $139.45

CHECK # 576
001 04/19/22 COMPLETE I.T. SERVICE & SOLUTIONS 8501 APRIL GOOGLE BUSINESS EMAIL ACCOUNTS ProfServ-Web Site Maintenance 531094-51301 $97.65

CHECK # 577
001 04/26/22 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROFESSIONALS 167140 SOD INSTALLATION @ DOG PARK R&M-Plant&Tree Replacement 546170-53908 $800.00

CHECK # 578
001 04/26/22 LOUIS SMITH 4313 FINAL PYMNT LANDSCAPE LIGHTING R&M - Facility 546024-57231 $1,720.00

CHECK # 579
001 04/29/22 INFRAMARK, LLC 76506 APRIL 2022 MANAGMNT SVCS ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $3,845.75
001 04/29/22 INFRAMARK, LLC 76506 APRIL 2022 MANAGMNT SVCS Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $10.07
001 04/29/22 INFRAMARK, LLC 76506 APRIL 2022 MANAGMNT SVCS Printing and Binding 547001-51301 $0.20
001 04/29/22 INFRAMARK, LLC 76506 APRIL 2022 MANAGMNT SVCS Contracts-Mgmt Services 534001-57231 $858.00
001 04/29/22 INFRAMARK, LLC 76506 APRIL 2022 MANAGMNT SVCS ProfServ-Field Management 531016-57231 $640.00
001 04/29/22 INFRAMARK, LLC 76506 APRIL 2022 MANAGMNT SVCS website backup renewal 549900-51301 $52.38
001 04/29/22 INFRAMARK, LLC 76506 APRIL 2022 MANAGMNT SVCS record storage fee 549900-51301 $8.33

Check Total $5,414.73

CHECK # DD3629
001 04/18/22 INNOVATIVE EMPLOYER SOLUTIONS-ACH 202210-INIT PAYROLL PERIOD ENDING 04/09/22 415-202210 534378-57231 $90.28

CHECK # DD3630
001 04/01/22 INNOVATIVE EMPLOYER SOLUTIONS-ACH 20227-INIT ACH PAYROLL PE 03/26/22 415-20227 534378-57231 $1,062.07

CHECK # DD3631
001 04/04/22 PASCO COUNTY UTILITIES SERVICES BRANCH - ACH 031822 ACH 02/07/22-03/07/22 UTILITIES Utility Services 543063-53601 $845.83

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 04/01/22 to 04/30/22

OAK CREEK

Community Development District

Page 9

Agenda Page #21



Fund 

No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 04/01/22 to 04/30/22

OAK CREEK

Community Development District

CHECK # DD3632
001 04/25/22 FRONTIER FLORIDA LLC - ACH 23175-040122 04/01/22-04/30/22 813-779-0368 Telephone/Fax/Internet Services 541009-57231 $150.98

CHECK # DD3633
001 04/22/22 Cardmember Service - ACH 032422-3321 ACH SUPPLIES Op Supplies - General 552001-57231 $147.19

CHECK # DD3634
001 04/15/22 INNOVATIVE EMPLOYER SOLUTIONS-ACH 20228-INIT ACH PAYROLL P/E 04/04/22 415-20227 534378-57231 $34.72

CHECK # DD3635
001 04/29/22 INNOVATIVE EMPLOYER SOLUTIONS-ACH 20229-INIT ACH PAYROLL PE 04/23/22 415-20229 534378-57231 $150.19

CHECK # DD3636
001 04/29/22 WITHLACOOCHEE RIVER  ELECTRIC - ACH 041422 ACH UTILITIES SVC DATES 03/09-4/11/22 Utility Services 543063-53100 $986.81
001 04/29/22 WITHLACOOCHEE RIVER  ELECTRIC - ACH 041422 ACH UTILITIES SVC DATES 03/09-4/11/22 Electricity - Streetlighting 543013-53100 $1,964.73

Check Total $2,951.54

CHECK # 580

001 04/29/22 LISA M. VAILE PAYROLL April 29, 2022 Payroll Posting $184.70

CHECK # 581

001 04/29/22 SAMUEL  E. WATSON, JR PAYROLL April 29, 2022 Payroll Posting $184.70

CHECK # 582

001 04/29/22 ADAM T. SILVA PAYROLL April 29, 2022 Payroll Posting $184.70

CHECK # 583

001 04/29/22 DAVID J. GERALD PAYROLL April 29, 2022 Payroll Posting $184.70

CHECK # 584

001 04/29/22 RYAN M. GILBERTSEN PAYROLL April 29, 2022 Payroll Posting $184.70

Fund Total $27,353.12

Total Checks Paid $27,353.12

Page 10

Agenda Page #22



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4C 

Agenda Page #23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Oak Creek Community 
 Development District 

 
     ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
 September 30, 2021 

 

Agenda Page #24



Oak Creek Community Development District  
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

September 30, 2021 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 Page 
   Number 

 
 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS                                           1-2 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  3-8 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
 Statement of Net Position 9 
 Statement of Activities  10 
 Fund Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 11 
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to Net 

Position of Governmental Activities 12 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 

Balances – Governmental Funds 13 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 
Statement of Activities 14 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances – Budget and Actual – General Fund 15 

  
 Notes to Financial Statements 16-29 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 30-31 

  
 MANAGEMENT LETTER 32-35 
 
      INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT/COMPLIANCE WITH  
      SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES                                                                        36 
 

Agenda Page #25



- 1 -

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
Pasco County, Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Oak Creek Community 
Development District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the 
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Accounting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Agenda Page #26



- 2 -  

To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Oak 
Creek Community Development District, as of September 30, 2021, and the respective changes 
in financial position and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated March 
15, 2022 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations and contracts.  The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Oak Creek Community 
Development District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
 
March 15, 2022 

Agenda Page #27

audit
BTEGF



Oak Creek Community Development District 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 
 

- 3 - 

Management’s discussion and analysis of Oak Creek Community Development District (the 
“District”) financial performance provides an objective and easily readable analysis of the 
District’s financial activities.  The analysis provides summary financial information for the District 
and should be read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements.  
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components; 1) Government-wide 
financial statements, 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to financial statements.  The 
Government-wide financial statements present an overall picture of the District’s financial 
position and results of operations.  The Fund financial statements present financial information 
for the District’s major funds.  The Notes to financial statements provide additional information 
concerning the District’s finances. 
 
The Government-wide financial statements are the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities.  These statements use accounting methods similar to those used by 
private-sector companies.  Emphasis is placed on the net position of governmental activities 
and the change in net position.  Governmental activities are primarily supported by special 
assessments. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all assets and liabilities of the District, 
with the difference between assets and liabilities reported as net position.  Net position is 
reported in three categories; 1) net investment in capital assets, 2) restricted, and 3) 
unrestricted.  Assets, liabilities, and net position are reported for all Governmental activities. 
 
The statement of activities presents information on all revenues and expenses of the District 
and the change in net position.  Expenses are reported by major function, and program 
revenues relating to those functions are reported, providing the net cost of all functions provided 
by the District.  To assist in understanding the District’s operations, expenses have been 
reported as governmental activities.  Governmental activities financed by the District include 
general government, physical environment and debt service. 
 
Fund financial statements present financial information for governmental funds.  These 
statements provide financial information for the major funds of the District.  Governmental fund 
financial statements provide information on the current assets and liabilities of the funds, 
changes in current financial resources (revenues and expenditures), and current available 
resources. 
 

Agenda Page #28



Oak Creek Community Development District 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 
 

- 4 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances for all governmental funds.  A statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – budget and actual is provided for 
the District’s General Fund.  Fund financial statements provide more detailed information about 
the District’s activities.  Individual funds are established by the District to track revenues that are 
restricted to certain uses or to comply with legal requirements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements provide different 
pictures of the District.  The government-wide financial statements provide an overall picture of 
the District’s financial standing.  These statements are comparable to private-sector companies 
and give a good understanding of the District’s overall financial health and how the District paid 
for the various activities, or functions, provided by the District.  All assets of the District, 
including capital assets are reported in the statement of net position.  All liabilities, including 
principal outstanding on bonds are included.  The statement of activities includes depreciation 
on all long lived assets of the District, but transactions between the different functions of the 
District have been eliminated in order to avoid “doubling up” the revenues and expenses.  The 
fund financial statements provide a picture of the major funds of the District.  In the case of 
governmental activities, outlays for long lived assets are reported as expenditures and long-term 
liabilities, such as general obligation bonds, are not included in the fund financial statements.  
To provide a link from the fund financial statements to the government-wide financial 
statements, a reconciliation is provided from the fund financial statements to the government-
wide financial statements. 
 
Notes to financial statements provide additional detail concerning the financial activities and 
financial balances of the District.  Additional information about the accounting practices of the 
District, investments of the District, capital assets and long-term debt are some of the items 
included in the notes to financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
The following are the highlights of financial activity for the year ended September 30, 2021. 
 

♦ The District’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources were exceeded by total 
liabilities by $(1,508,116) (net position).  Unrestricted net position for Governmental 
Activities was $191,379. Governmental Activities restricted net position was $39,753 and 
net investment in capital assets was $(1,739,248). 

 
♦ Governmental activities revenues totaled $910,562 while governmental activities 

expenses totaled $844,627. 
 
 
 

Agenda Page #29



Oak Creek Community Development District 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 
 

- 5 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Financial Analysis of the District 
 
The following schedule provides a summary of the assets, liabilities and net position of the 
District and is presented by category for comparison purposes.   
 

Net Position 
 

2021 2020
Current assets 202,318$      170,200$      
Restricted assets 321,000        317,112        
Capital assets, net 2,174,816     2,360,586     
    Total Assets 2,698,134     2,847,898     

Deferred Outflow of Resources 37,800          40,500          

Current liabilities 307,561        302,282        
Non-current liabilities 3,936,489     4,160,167     
    Total Liabilities 4,244,050     4,462,449     

Net investment in capital assets (1,739,248)    (1,969,081)    
Net position - restricted 39,753          237,735        
Net position - unrestricted 191,379        157,295        
    Total Net Position (1,508,116)$  (1,574,051)$  

Governmental Activities

 
The increase in current assets is the result of revenues exceeding expenditures at the fund level 
in the current year. 
 
The decrease in capital assets was mainly due to depreciation in the current year. 
 
The decrease in non-current liabilities is the result of principal payments on long-term debt 
during the current year. 
 
The increase in net investment in capital assets is primarily due to depreciation is less than 
principal payments on long-term debt during the current year.  
 

Agenda Page #30



Oak Creek Community Development District 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 
 

- 6 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Financial Analysis of the District (Continued) 
 
The following schedule provides a summary of the changes in net position of the District and is 
presented by category for comparison purposes.   
 

Change In Net Position 
 

2021 2020
Program Revenues
   Charges for services 908,446$      882,386$      
General Revenues
   Miscellaneous revenues 1,791            2,984            
   Investment earnings 325               1,413            
      Total Revenues 910,562        886,783        

Expenses
   General government 141,675        114,959        
   Physical environment 342,798        352,707        
   Culture and recreation 164,658        178,292        
   Interest and other charges 195,496        202,998        
      Total Expenses 844,627        848,956        

Change in Net Position 65,935          37,827          

Net Position - Beginning of Year (1,574,051)    (1,611,878)    

Net Position - End of Year (1,508,116)$  (1,574,051)$  

Governmental Activities

  
The increase in charges for services is related to the budgeted increase in special assessments 
in the current year. 
 
The increase in general government expenses is related to the increase in engineer expenses 
in the current year. 
 
The decrease in culture and recreation is primarily the related to the decrease in holiday lighting 
expenses in the current year.  
 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Page #31



Oak Creek Community Development District 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 
 

- 7 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Capital Assets Activity 
 
The following schedule provides a summary of the District’s capital assets as of September 30, 
2021 and 2020. 
 

Description 2021 2020
Infrastructure 2,173,022$      2,173,022$      
Building and improvements 1,682,775        1,674,275        
Improvements other than building 560,559           560,559           
Equipment 39,154             39,154             
Accumulated depreciation (2,280,694)       (2,086,424)       

     Total Capital Assets (Net) 2,174,816$      2,360,586$      

Governmental Activities

 
The activity for the year consisted of depreciation of $194,270 and additions to buildings and 
improvements of $8,500. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The budget exceeded actual governmental expenditures primarily due to less legal fee 
expenditures than were anticipated. 
 
The September 30, 2021 budget was amended for an decrease in capital outlay and  an 
increase in reserves. 
 
Debt Management 
 
Governmental Activities debt includes the following: 
 

• In September 2015, the District issued $4,140,000 Senior Special Assessment 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A-1 and $1,260,000 Subordinate Special Assessments 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A-2.  These bonds were issued to refund of the Series 
2004 Special Assessment Bonds.  As of September 30, 2021, the balances outstanding 
for the Series 2015A-1 and 2015A-2 Bonds were $3,195,000 and $980,000, 
respectively. 

 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 
 
Oak Creek Community Development District does not expect any economic factors to have any 
significant effect on the financial position or results of operations of the District in fiscal year 
2022. 

Agenda Page #32



Oak Creek Community Development District 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021 
 

- 8 - 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Request for Information 
 
The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Oak Creek Community 
Development District’s finances for all those with an interest.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 
the Oak Creek Community Development District, Inframark Infrastructure Management 
Services, Inc., 210 North University Drive, Suite 702, Coral Springs, Florida 33071. 
 
 
 

Agenda Page #33



Governmental

ASSETS
Activities

Current Assets
Cash $           178,891
Due from other governments                  2,968
Prepaid expenses                17,404
Deposits 

Total Current Assets
                 3,055
             202,318

Non-current Assets
Restricted assets

Investments               321,000
Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements           1,682,775
Infrastructure           2,173,022
Improvements other than buildings              560,559
Equipment                39,154
Less: accumulated depreciation          (2,280,694)

Total Non-current Assets           2,495,816
          2,698,134Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding, net

LIABILITIES

               37,800

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses                  9,566
Accrued interest                77,995
Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities
             220,000
             307,561

Non-current liabilities
Bonds payable           3,936,489

Total Liabilities           4,244,050

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets          (1,739,248)
Restricted for debt service 39,753
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position
191,379

$       (1,508,116)

Oak Creek Community Development District
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 9 -

Agenda Page #34



Net (Expense)
Revenues and

Program Changes in
Revenues Net Position

Governmental 
ActivitiesFunctions/Programs

  Governmental Activities

Charges for 
Expenses Services

    General government $        (145,287) $          150,670 $                 5,383
    Physical environment           (339,186)            232,559               (106,627)
    Culture/recreation           (164,658)            105,008                 (59,650)
    Interest and other charges
Total Governmental Activities

          (195,496) 420,209
$        (844,627) $          908,446

               224,713
                 63,819

General revenues:
Investment earnings                       325
Miscellaneous revenues                    1,791

Total General Revenues                    2,116

                 65,935Change in Net Position

Net Position - October 1, 2020            (1,574,051)
Net Position - September 30, 2021 $         (1,508,116)

Oak Creek Community Development District
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended September 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 10 -

Agenda Page #35



Total
Debt Governmental

ASSETS General Service Funds

$    178,891 Cash $    178,891 $                -
Due from other governments           1,595           1,373           2,968 
Prepaid expenses         17,404                   -         17,404 
Deposits 3,055                   -           3,055 
Restricted assets:
    Investments, at fair value                   -       321,000       321,000 
        Total Assets $    200,945 $    322,373 $    523,318 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

FUND BALANCES

$        9,566 $                - $        9,566 

Nonspendable:
Prepaids/Deposits         20,459                  -         20,459 

Restricted:
Debt service                   -       322,373       322,373 

Assigned:
    Operating reserves 73,245                  -         73,245 
    Irrigation/Landscapes 55,025                  -         55,025 
Unassigned
        Total Fund Balances

        Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

      

$    

42,650
191,379 

200,945 

                 
      

$    

- 
322,373 

322,373 

        42,650 
      513,752 

$    523,318 

Oak Creek Community Development District
BALANCE SHEET –

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 11 -

Agenda Page #36



Total Governmental Fund Balances $         513,752

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets being depreciated, buildings and improvements, $1,682,775, 
infrastructure, $2,173,022, improvements other than building, $560,559, and 
equipment, $39,154, net of accumulated depreciation, $(2,280,694), used in
governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore, 2,174,816
are not reported at the fund level. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, $(4,175,000), net of bond discount, 
net, $18,511, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore,
are not reported at the fund level.        (4,156,489)

Deferred outflow of resources are not current financial resources and therefore,
are not reported at the governmental fund level.              37,800

Accrued interest expense for long-term debt is not a current financial use
and therefore, is not reported at the governmental fund level.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

            (77,995)

$     (1,508,116)

Oak Creek Community Development District
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
September 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 12 -

Agenda Page #37



Total
Debt Governmental

General Service Funds
Revenues

Special assessments $     488,237 $     420,209 $     908,446 
Investment earnings               305                 20               325 
Miscellaneous revenues            1,791                   -            1,791 

       910,562             Total Revenues 490,333        420,229 

Expenditures
Current   

General government 138,175            7,112        145,287 
Physical environment 213,274                   -        213,274 
Culture/recreation 96,300                   -          96,300 

Capital outlay 8,500                   -            8,500 
Debt service

Principal                   -        215,000        215,000 
Interest                   -        194,631        194,631 

       872,992 

         37,570 

            Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balances

       

         

456,249 

34,084 

       

           

416,743 

3,486 

Fund Balances - October 1, 2020

Fund Balances - September 30, 2021 $   

157,295

  191,379 

       

$   

318,887 

  322,373 

       476,182 

$     513,752 

Oak Creek Community Development District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES –

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 13 -

Agenda Page #38



Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $        37,570

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays. However, in the Statement of Activities
the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as 
depreciation. This is the amount that depreciation, $(194,270), exceeded
capital outlay, $8,500, in the current year.        (185,770)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.         215,000

The deferred outflow of resources for refunding of debt is recognized as a
component of interest expense in the Statement of Activities, but not in 
the governmental funds. This is the amount of current year interest.            (2,700)

The amortization of bond discount is an expense in the Statement of Activities
while the bond discount was listed as an other financing use in the year
financing was received.           (1,322) 

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds; whereas
in governmental funds, interest expenditures are reported when due.  This is
the net amount between the prior year and the current year accruals.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

            3,157

$        65,935

Oak Creek Community Development District
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended September 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 14 -

Agenda Page #39



Variance With
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Special assessments $ 487,619 $ 487,619 $ 488,237 $             618 
Investment earnings         1,600         1,600 305             (1,295)
Miscellaneous revenues            250            250 1,791              1,541

                864Total Revenues     489,469     489,469    490,333

Expenditures
Current

General government 140,954 140,954 138,175              2,779
Physical environment 238,979 238,979 213,274            25,705
Culture/recreation 77,536 86,536 96,300             (9,764)

Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances - October 1, 2020

32,000
    489,469

               -

    157,986

23,000
    489,469

               -

    157,295

8,500
   456,249

     34,084

   157,295

           14,500
           33,220

           34,084

                     -
 

Fund Balances - September 30, 2021 $ 157,986 $ 157,295 191,379$ $        34,084 
 

Oak Creek Community Development District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL –
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 15 -

Agenda Page #40



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 16 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of Oak Creek Community Development District (the “District”) have 
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles.  The District's more significant accounting policies are described below. 
 
1. Reporting Entity 
 

The District was established on March 23, 2004 by Pasco County Ordinance 04-10 and the 
provisions of the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), as a Community Development District.  The District was 
established for the purposes of financing and managing the acquisition, construction, 
maintenance and operation of the infrastructure necessary for community development 
within its jurisdiction.  The District is authorized to issue bonds for the purpose, among 
others, of financing, funding, planning, establishing, acquiring, constructing or re-
constructing, enlarging or extending, equipping, operating and maintaining water 
management, water supply, sewer and waste water management, bridges or culverts, 
district roads, landscaping, street lights and other basic infrastructure projects within or 
outside the boundaries of the Oak Creek Community Development District.  The District is 
governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors, who are elected for terms of four years.  
The District operates within the criteria established by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. 
 

The reporting entity for the District includes all functions of government in which the 
District’s Board exercises oversight responsibility.  Oversight responsibility includes, but 
is not limited to, financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation 
of management, significant ability to influence operations and accountability for fiscal 
matters.  As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the Oak Creek 
Community Development District (the primary government) as a stand-alone 
government. 

 
Based upon the application of the above-mentioned criteria as set forth in principles 
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the District has identified no 
component units. 

Agenda Page #41



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 17 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
  The basic financial statements of the District are composed of the following: 
 

• Government-wide financial statements 
• Fund financial statements 
• Notes to financial statements 

 
a. Government-wide Financial Statements 

 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Government-wide financial 
statements report all non-fiduciary information about the reporting government as a 
whole.  These statements include the governmental activities of the primary government.  
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
 
Governmental activities which normally are supported by special assessments, and 
interest, are reported separately from business-type activities.  Program revenues 
include charges for services, and payments made by parties outside of the reporting 
government’s citizenry if that money is restricted to a particular program.  Program 
revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to present the 
net cost of each program. 
 
Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets, rather than reported as 
an expenditure.  Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as liabilities in the 
government-wide financial statements, rather than as an other financing source. 

 
Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government are 
reported as a reduction of the related liability, rather than as an expenditure. 

 
b. Fund Financial Statements 

 
The underlying accounting system of the District is organized and operated on the basis 
of separate funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity.  The 
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, 
as appropriate.  Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual 
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. 
 
Fund financial statements for the primary government’s governmental funds are 
presented after the government-wide financial statements.  These statements display 
information about major funds individually. 

Agenda Page #42



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 18 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
 b. Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

 
Governmental Funds 
 
The District classifies fund balance according to Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement 54 – Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions. The Statement requires the fund balance for governmental funds to be 
reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to 
which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts in those funds can be spent. 
 
The District has various policies governing the fund balance classifications. 

 
Nonspendable Fund Balance – This classification consists of amounts that cannot be 
spent because they are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that can be spent only 
for specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through 
enabling legislation.    
 
Assigned Fund Balance – This classification consists of the Board of Supervisors’ intent 
to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – This classification is the residual classification for the 
government’s general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the 
other classifications.  Unassigned fund balance is considered to be utilized first when an 
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund 
balance classifications could be used. 
 
Fund Balance Spending Hierarchy – For all governmental funds except special revenue 
funds, when restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balances are 
combined in a fund, qualified expenditures are paid first from restricted or committed 
fund balance, as appropriate, then assigned and finally unassigned fund balances. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues 
are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the District considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period. 

Agenda Page #43



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 19 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
 b. Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

 
Governmental Funds (Continued) 
 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be an 
accrual item and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period.   
 
Under the current financial resources measurement focus, only current assets and 
current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet.  The reported fund 
balance is considered to be a measure of “available spendable resources.”  
Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other 
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current 
assets.  Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of 
“available spendable resources” during a period. 
 
Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for 
governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by non-current liabilities.  Since 
they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as 
governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. 
 
Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year 
that resources were expended, rather than as fund assets.  The proceeds of long-term 
debt are recorded as an other financing source rather than as a fund liability. 
 
Debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due. 

 
3. Basis of Presentation 
 
 a. Governmental Major Funds 
 

General Fund – The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund.  It accounts 
for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 
 
Debt Service Fund – Accounts for debt service requirements to retire certain special 
assessment bonds which were used to finance the construction of District infrastructure 
improvements and finance certain additional improvements.  The bond series is secured 
by a pledge of debt service special assessment revenues in any fiscal year related to the 
improvements.  A lien is placed on all benefited land in relationship to the debt 
outstanding. 

Agenda Page #44



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 20 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
3. Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
 b. Non-current Governmental Assets/Liabilities 
 

GASB Statement 34 requires that non-current governmental assets, such as land and 
buildings, and non-current governmental liabilities, such as special assessment bonds, 
be reported in the governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of 
net position. 

 
4. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 
 
 a. Cash and Investments 
 

Florida Statutes require state and local governmental units to deposit monies with 
financial institutions classified as "Qualified Public Depositories," a multiple financial 
institution pool whereby groups of securities pledged by the various financial institutions 
provide common collateral from their deposits of public funds.  This pool is provided as 
additional insurance to the federal depository insurance and allows for additional 
assessments against the member institutions, providing full insurance for public 
deposits.  
 
The District is authorized to invest in those financial instruments as established by 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.  The authorized investments consist of: 

 
1. Direct obligations of the United States Treasury; 
 
2. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust or any intergovernmental investment 

pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperative Act of 1969; 
 
3. Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in authorized qualified public 

depositories; 
 
4. Securities and Exchange Commission, registered money market funds with the 

highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency.   
 

Cash equivalents include time deposits and certificates of deposit with original maturities 
of three months or less and held in a qualified public depository as defined by Section 
280.02, Florida Statutes. 

Agenda Page #45



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 21 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
4. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,  Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 

(Continued) 
 
 b. Restricted Assets 
 

Certain net position of the District is classified as restricted assets on the statement of 
net position because their use is limited either by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation; or by restrictions imposed externally by creditors.  In a fund with 
both restricted and unrestricted assets, qualified expenses are considered to be paid first 
from restricted net position and then from unrestricted net position. 

 
 c. Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets, which include buildings and improvements, infrastructure  improvements 
other than buildings and equipment are reported in the applicable governmental 
activities column. 
 
The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or 
more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  The valuation basis for all 
assets is historical cost. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend its useful life are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed.   
 
Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded by utilizing the straight-line 
method.  Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are 
as follows: 
   
              Infrastructure          25 years 

                          Building and Improvements       5-30 years 
    Improvements other than Buildings   15-30 years 
    Equipment      10-15 years 

 
 d. Deferred Outflow of Resources 
 

Deferred outflow of resources is the consumption of net position by the government that 
is applicable to a future reported period. Deferred amount on refunding is amortized and 
recognized as a component of interest expense over the life of the bond.  
 

      e.   Unamortized Bond Discount 
 
Bond discounts are presented on the government-wide financial statements. The             
costs are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method of 
accounting.  For   financial reporting, the unamortized bond discount is netted against 
the applicable long-term debt. 

Agenda Page #46



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 22 - 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
4. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued) 
 
 f. Budgets 
 

Budgets are prepared and adopted after public hearings for the governmental funds, 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  The District utilizes the same basis of 
accounting for budgets as it does for revenues and expenditures in its various funds.  
The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level.  All budgeted appropriations 
lapse at year end.  Formal budgets are adopted for the general and debt service funds.  
As a result, deficits in the budget variance columns of the accompanying financial 
statements may occur. 

 
NOTE B – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 
 
1. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 

Government-wide Statement of Net Position 
 

“Total fund balances” of the District’s governmental funds, $513,752, differs from “net 
position” of governmental activities, $(1,508,116), reported in the Statement of Net Position.  
This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net 
position versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance.  
 
Capital related items 
 
When capital assets (property, plant and equipment that are to be used in governmental 
activities) are purchased or constructed, the cost of those assets is reported as expenditures 
in governmental funds.  However, the Statement of Net Position included those capital 
assets among the assets of the District as a whole.  

 
  Buildings and improvements     $     1,682,775 
  Infrastructure              2,173,022 
  Improvements other than buildings              560,559 
  Equipment                    39,154  
  Accumulated depreciation           (2,280,694)  
 Total $     2,174,816    
 

Long-term debt transactions 
 
Long-term liabilities applicable to the District’s governmental activities are not due and 
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.  All 
liabilities (both current and long-term) are reported in the Statement of Net Position.  
Balances at September 30, 2021 were: 

 
  Bonds payable    $   (4,175,000)  
  Bond discount, net               18,511 
   Total     $   (4,156,489) 
 

Agenda Page #47



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 23 - 

NOTE B – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
1. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 

Government-wide Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
 

Deferred outflow of resources 
 
Deferred outflow of resources applicable to the District’s governmental activities are not 
current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as fund deferred outflow of 
resources: 

 
  Deferred amount on refunding    $           37,800 
 
Accrued interest 
 
Accrued liabilities in the Statement of Net Position differ from the amount reported in 
governmental funds due to accrued interest on bonds. 

                   
  Accrued interest on bonds payable    $         (77,995)  

 
2. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Operating Statements 

and the Statement of Activities  
 
The “net change in fund balances” for government funds, $37,570, differs from the “change 
in net position” for governmental activities, $65,935, reported in the Statement of Activities.  
The differences arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the Statement of 
Activities versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds.  The effect 
of the differences is illustrated below. 
 
Capital related items 
 
When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or 
constructed, the resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds.  However, in the Statement of Activities, the costs of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation. As a result, fund 
balances decrease by the amount of financial resources expended, whereas net position 
decreases by the amount of depreciation charged for the year. 
 
  Depreciation      $      (194,270) 
  Capital outlay                   8,500    
   Total      $      (185,770)  
 
 

Agenda Page #48



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 24 - 

NOTE B – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
2. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Operating Statements 

and the Statement of Activities (Continued) 
 
Long-term debt transactions 
 
Repayments of bond principal are reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds 
and, thus, have the effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources 
have been used. 
 
  Debt principal payments                 $         215,000    
 
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 
 
  Net change in accrued interest payable   $              3,157  
  Decrease in bond discount                   (1,322)  
  Decrease in deferred amount on refunding       (2,700)  

    Total       $      (865)  
 
NOTE C – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
All deposits are held in qualified public depositories and are included on the accompanying 
balance sheet as cash and investments. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not 
be returned to it.  The District does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk; 
however, they follow the provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes regarding deposits and 
investments.  As of September 30, 2021, the District's bank balance was $185,221 and the 
carrying value was $178,891.  Exposure to custodial credit risk was as follows. The District 
maintains all deposits and certificates of deposit in a qualified public depository in accordance 
with the provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, which means that all deposits are fully 
insured by Federal Depositors Insurance or collateralized under Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. 

Agenda Page #49



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 25 - 

NOTE C – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
As of September 30, 2021, the District had the following investments and maturities: 

 
Investment Maturity Date Fair Value

U.S. Bank Managed Money Market N/A 321,000$       
 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy recently 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs 
used to measure the fair value of the asset. The District uses a market approach in measuring 
fair value that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions 
involving identical or similar assets, liabilities, or groups of assets and liabilities. 
 
Assets or liabilities are classified into one of three levels. Level 1 is the most reliable and is 
based on quoted price for identical assets, or liabilities, in an active market. Level 2 uses 
significant other observable inputs when obtaining quoted prices for identical or similar assets, 
or liabilities, in markets that are not active. Level 3 is the least reliable and uses significant 
unobservable inputs that uses the best information available under the circumstances, which 
includes the District’s own data in measuring unobservable inputs. 
 
Based on the criteria in the preceding paragraph, the investment listed above is a Level 1 asset. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
The District's investments in commercial paper, and government loans are limited by state 
statutory requirements and bond compliance.  The District has no investment policy that would 
further limit its investment choices. The District’s investments in U.S. Bank Managed Money 
Market is not rated by Standards & Poor’s.  
 

Agenda Page #50



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 26 - 

NOTE C – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The District places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one fund. The investments in U.S. 
Bank Managed Money Market is 100% of the District’s total investments.  
 
The types of deposits and investments and their level of risk exposure as of September 30, 
2021 were typical of these items during the fiscal year then ended. The District considers any 
decline in fair value for certain investments to be temporary.   
 
NOTE D – SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUES 
 
Special assessment revenues recognized for the 2020-2021 fiscal year were levied in August 
2020.  All taxes are due and payable on November 1 or as soon as the assessment roll is 
certified and delivered to the Tax Collector.  Per Section 197.162, Florida Statutes discounts are 
allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in November, 3% in December, 2% in January, and 
1% in February.  Taxes paid in March are without discount. 
 
All unpaid taxes become delinquent as of April 1.  Virtually all unpaid taxes are collected via the 
sale of tax certificates on, or prior to, June 1; therefore, there were no material taxes receivable 
at fiscal year end. 
 
NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital Asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
   Infrastructure 2,173,022$   -$               -$             2,173,022$   

Buildings and improvements 1,674,275     8,500          -               1,682,775     
   Improvements other than buildings 560,559        -                 -               560,559        

Equipment 39,154          -                 -               39,154          
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 4,447,010     8,500          -               4,455,510     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
   Infrastructure (1,042,686)    (86,920)       -               (1,129,606)    

Buildings and improvements (588,577)       (68,358)       -               (656,935)       
   Improvements other than buildings (438,091)       (36,370)       -               (474,461)       

Equipment (17,070)         (2,622)         -               (19,692)         
Total Accumulated Depreciation (2,086,424)    (194,270)     -               (2,280,694)    

Total Capital Assets Depreciated, Net 2,360,586$   (185,770)$   -$             2,174,816$   

Depreciation of $125,912 was charged to physical environment and $68,358 was charged to 
culture/recreation. 

Agenda Page #51



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 27 - 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The following is a summary of activity for long-term debt of the District for the year ended 
September 30, 2021: 
 
Long-term debt at October 1, 2020  $      4,390,000 
 
  Principal payments             (215,000) 
  
Long-term debt at September 30, 2021   $      4,175,000  
 
  Less: bond discount, net               (18,511) 
 
   Bonds Payable, Net at September 30, 2021  $      4,156,489  
 
Long-term debt is comprised of the following: 
 
Special Assessment Refunding Bonds 
 
$4,140,000 Series 2015A-1 Senior Special Assessment 
Refunding Bonds are due in annual principal installments 
beginning May 2016 maturing May 2035. Interest at various 
rates between 2.25% and 4.5% is due May and November 
beginning November 2015. Current portion is $170,000. $      3,195,000  
 
$1,260,000 Series 2015A-2 Subordinate Special Assessment 
Refunding Bonds are due in annual principal installments 
beginning May 2016 maturing May 2035. Interest at an interest 
rate of 5.25% is due May and November beginning November 
2015. Current portion is $50,000.            980,000 
 
 Bond payable          4,175,000  
 
  Less: bond discount, net               (18,511) 
 
   Bonds Payable, Net at September 30, 2021  $      4,156,489  

Agenda Page #52



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 28 - 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
The annual requirements to amortize the principal and interest of bonded debt outstanding as of 
September 30, 2021 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total

2022  $         220,000  $         187,188  $         407,188 
2023             230,000             178,953             408,953 
2024             240,000             170,028             410,028 
2025             250,000             160,203             410,203 
2026             260,000             149,738             409,738 

2027-2031          1,505,000             559,863          2,064,863 
2032-2035          1,470,000             176,172          1,646,172 

Totals  $      4,175,000  $      1,582,145  $      5,757,145 
 

Summary of Significant Bonds Resolution Terms and Covenants  
 
The Series 2015A-1 and Series 2015A-2 Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the 
District prior to their maturity, in whole or in part, at any time after May 1, 2025, at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount of the Series 2015A-1 Bonds and Series 2015A-2 Bonds to 
be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption. The Series 2015A-1 and 
Series 2015A-2 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity in 
the manner determined by the Bond Registrar if certain events occurred as outlined in the Trust 
Indenture.  
 

The Trust Indenture established certain amounts be maintained in a reserve account.  In 
addition, the Trust Indenture has certain restrictions and requirements relating principally to the 
use of proceeds to pay for the infrastructure improvements and the procedures to be followed 
by the District on assessments to property owners. The District agrees to levy special 
assessments in annual amounts adequate to provide payment of debt service and to meet the 
reserve requirements. 
 
Depository Funds 
 

The bond resolution establishes certain funds and determines the order in which revenues are 
to be deposited into these funds.  A description of the significant funds, including their purposes, 
is as follows: 
 

Reserve Funds - The Series 2015A-1 and Series 2015A-2 Reserve Accounts were funded from 
the proceeds of the Series 2015A-1 and Series 2015A-2 Bonds in amounts equal to 50 percent 
of the maximum annual debt service on the outstanding Series 2015A-1 and Series 2015A-2 
Bonds. Monies held in the reserve accounts will be used only for the purposes established in 
the Trust Indenture. 

Agenda Page #53



Oak Creek Community Development District 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2021 
 
 

- 29 - 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Summary of Significant Bonds Resolution Terms and Covenants (Continued) 
 
The following is a schedule of required reserve balances as of September 30, 2021: 
 

Reserve Reserve
Balance Requirement

Senior Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A-1 153,927$     153,756$     
Subordinate Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2015A-2 51,978$       50,869$       

NOTE G – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government 
carries commercial insurance. These risks are covered by commercial insurance from 
independent third parties. There were no claims or settled claims from these risks for each of 
the past three years.  
 
 

Agenda Page #54



- 30 - 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
Pasco County, Florida 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Oak Creek Community Development District, as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated March 15, 2022.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Oak Creek Community Development 
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Oak Creek Community Development District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Oak Creek Community Development District's 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Agenda Page #55



- 31 - 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
Pasco County, Florida 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Oak Creek Community Development 
District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
 
March 15, 2022 
 

Agenda Page #56

audit
BTEGF



 
 
 
 
 
 

- 32 - 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 
 
To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
Pasco County, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Oak Creek Community Development District as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated March 
15, 2022. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules 
of the Florida Auditor General.   
 
Other Reporting Requirements 
 
We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and our Independent Auditor’s Report on an 
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professionals Standards, AT-C Section 315 
regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General.  Disclosures in that report, which is dated March 15, 2022, should be considered in 
conjunction with this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
   
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the 
preceding financial audit report. There were no findings or recommendations made in the 
preceding financial audit report. 
 
Financial Condition and Management 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we apply 
appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not 
Oak Creek Community Development District has met one or more of the conditions described in 
Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify of the specific conditions met. In connection 
with our audit, we determined that the Oak Creek Community Development District did not meet 
any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

Agenda Page #57



 
 
 
 
 
 

- 33 - 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied 
financial conditions assessment procedures as of September 30, 2021 for Oak Creek 
Community Development District. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the Oak Creek 
Community Development District’s financial condition; our financial condition assessment was 
based in part on the representations made by management and the review of the financial 
information provided by the same. 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any 
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not 
have any such recommendations. 
 
Specific Information 
 
The information provided below was provided by management and has not been audited; 
therefore, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information. 
 
As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the 
Auditor General, the Oak Creek Community Development District reported: 
 

1) The total number of district employees compensated in the last pay period of the 
District’s fiscal year: The District did not have any employees. 

2) The total number of independent contractors to whom nonemployee compensation was 
paid in the last month of the District’s fiscal year: 7 

3) All compensation earned by or awarded to employees, whether paid or accrued, 
regardless of contingency: N/A 

4) All compensation earned by or awarded to nonemployee independent contractors, 
whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency: $103,597 

5) Each construction project with a total cost of at least $65,000 approved by the District 
that is scheduled to begin on or after October 1, 2020, together with the total 
expenditures for such project: The District had no construction projects during the year.  

6) A budget variance based on the budget adopted under Section 189.016(4), Florida 
Statutes, before the beginning of the fiscal year being reported if the District amends a 
final adopted budget under Section 189.016(6), Florida Statutes: The budget was 
amended, see schedule on the following page.  

 
As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)8, Rules of the 
Auditor General, the Oak Creek Community Development District reported: 
 

7) The rate or rates of non-ad valorem special assessments imposed by the District: 
$838.73 - $1,006.48 for the General Fund and $730.20 – $863.34 for the Debt Service 
Fund. 

8) The amount of special assessments collected by or on behalf of the District: Total 
Special Assessments collected was $908,446.  

      9) The total amount of outstanding bonds issued by the District and the terms of such   
bonds: $4,175,000, matures May 2035. 

Agenda Page #58



- 34 - 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
 

Original        
Budget Actual

Variance with 
Original Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues
Special assessments 487,619$           488,237$           618$                  
Interest earning 1,600                 305                    (1,295)                
Miscellaneous revenues 250                    1,791                 1,541                 

Total Revenues 489,469             490,333             864                    

Expenditures
Current

General government 140,954             138,175             2,779                 
Physical environment 238,979             213,274             25,705               
Culture and recreation 77,536               96,300               (18,764)              

Capital outlay 32,000               8,500                 23,500               
Total Expenditures 489,469             456,249             33,220               

Net changes in fund balance -                         34,084               34,084               

Fund Balances - October 1, 2020 157,986             157,295             (691)                   

Fund Balances - September 30, 2021 157,986$           191,379$           33,393$             
 

Additional Matters 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate 
noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, 
or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than 
material but which warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with 
our audit, we did not note any such findings.  

Agenda Page #59



- 35 - 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
 
Purpose of this Letter 
 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the 
Florida Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Supervisors, and 
applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
 
March 15, 2022 

Agenda Page #60

audit
BTEGF



 
 
 
 
 
 

- 36 - 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT/COMPLIANCE 
WITH SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES 

 
 
 
To the Board of Supervisors 
Oak Creek Community Development District 
Pasco County, Florida 
 
 
We have examined Oak Creek Community Development District's compliance with Section 
218.415, Florida Statutes during the year ended September 30, 2021. Management is 
responsible for Oak Creek Community Development District’s compliance with those 
requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Oak Creek Community 
Development District’s compliance based on our examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about Oak Creek Community Development District’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on Oak Creek Community Development 
District’s compliance with the specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, Oak Creek Community Development District complied, in all material respects, 
with the aforementioned requirements during the year ended September 30, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
 
March 15, 2022 

Agenda Page #61

audit
BTEGF



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4D. 
  

Agenda Page #62



 

CDD Labor Rates 

(July 1, 2022 – July 1, 2023) 

 

Classification Rates 
Principal $225 
Project Manager $200 
Senior Engineer $180 
Project Engineer $145 
Engineer $115 
Senior Surveyor $150 
Project Surveyor $130 
Surveyor $95 
Survey Field Crew (3-person) $165 
GIS Technician $150 
Senior Environmental Scientist $150 
Environmental Scientist $110 
Senior Designer $110 
Designer $95 
Senior Engineering Technician $85 
Engineering Technician $65 
Senior Inspector $115 
Inspector $75 
Clerical $50 

 

Agenda Page #63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4E. 
  

Agenda Page #64



Below is a table for the bids we received for the Oak Creek Sidewalk Grinding RFP. 
 

Oak Creek CDD - RFP For Sidewalk Grinding 
  

Company 
 

Contact  
  
 Total Bid Price  

Inframark Brett Perez $         1,470.00  
Construction Management Services Mike Ambriati $         3,040.00  
Apex Asphalt & Concrete Services Richard Ostrander $         3,198.00  

ACPLM  Joel Samon $         3,710.00  
Rose Paving Mike Kampshnieder $         6,248.92  

 

Agenda Page #65



A

x

x

POND
11A

OAK CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOUNDARY

BLUFF MEADOW
COURT

C
LI

FF
C

R
EE

K 
C

O
U

R
T

PINE SPRINGS DR.

SPARKLING WAY

PI
C

KF
O

R
D

 C
O

U
R

T

DOE PATH COURT

FA
LL

IN
G O

AK

GROVE COURT

BRADFORD HILL

SP
R

IN
G

 O
AK

 T
R

AI
L

W
IN

D
KN

O
B 

C
O

U
R

T

BL
U

E 
AS

H
 C

O
U

R
T

RUNNER OAK DRIVE

BOULDER RUN LOOP

W
ILD ELM COURT

SP
RI

NG
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL

H
AW

K

SPARKLING WAY

COURT

TRAIL

LA
U

G
H

IN
G

 O
AK

 D
R

IV
E

POND
14

POND
15

POND
16

POND
10

POND
8A

POND
3

POND
2B POND

2A
POND

1

POND
6

POND
22

POND
23

POND
25

POND
21

POND
24

POND
26

POND
9

POND
8B

WETLAND
J

WETLAND
A

WETLAND
B

POND
19

SUMP
A2

POND
11B

POND
12

POND
457

POND
17

SUMP
A1

SUMP
A4

SUMP
A3

HANDCART ROAD

POND
18

SUMP
J1

SUMP
J2

SUMP
J3

SUMP
23A

SUMP
23B

SUMP
14A

SUMP
A5

SUMP
26B

SUMP
26A

WETLAND
H

FILE: Q:\2018\1801747_001_Oak_Creek_Community_\CADD\Ownership Map\Oak Creek Ownership Map.dwg LAST SAVED: Mon, 04/04/22-3:23p PLOTTED: Mon, 04/04/22-3:25p BY: ASerra

OAK CREEK PH. 1,2, & 3
OWNERSHIP MAP

1

JANUARY 2020
OAK CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT OWNERSHIP MAP

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SHEET NO:APPROVED

DESIGNED

DRAWN

Q.C.

BY DATEDESCRIPTIONNO.

LEGEND

CDD OWNED SIDEWALKS

OAK CREEK EASEMENT LINE

POND OWNERSHIP\ MAINTENANCE

COMMON AREA OWNERSHIP\ MAINTENANCE

DISTRICT BOUNDARY LINE

WETLAND

POND CONTROL STRUCTURE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

STORM SEWER INLET AND PIPE

NOTE:
MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPE WITHIN RIGHT OF
WAY IS FROM THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT TO THE
RIGHT OF WAY/ PROPERTY LINE

2000 E. 11 AVE. SUITE 300
TAMPA, FL 33605, PH: (813) 314-0314

Ag
en

da
 P

ag
e 

#6
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT



A

x

x

POND
11A

OAK CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOUNDARY

BLUFF MEADOW
COURT

C
LI

FF
C

R
EE

K 
C

O
U

R
T

PINE SPRINGS DR.

SPARKLING WAY

PI
C

KF
O

R
D

 C
O

U
R

T

DOE PATH COURT

FA
LL

IN
G O

AK

GROVE COURT

BRADFORD HILL

SP
R

IN
G

 O
AK

 T
R

AI
L

W
IN

D
KN

O
B 

C
O

U
R

T

BL
U

E 
AS

H
 C

O
U

R
T

RUNNER OAK DRIVE

BOULDER RUN LOOP

W
ILD ELM COURT

SP
RI

NG
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL

H
AW

K

SPARKLING WAY

COURT

TRAIL

LA
U

G
H

IN
G

 O
AK

 D
R

IV
E

POND
14

POND
15

POND
16

POND
10

POND
8A

POND
3

POND
2B POND

2A
POND

1

POND
6

POND
22

POND
23

POND
25

POND
21

POND
24

POND
26

POND
9

POND
8B

WETLAND
J

WETLAND
A

WETLAND
B

POND
19

SUMP
A2

POND
11B

POND
12

POND
457

POND
17

SUMP
A1

SUMP
A4

SUMP
A3

HANDCART ROAD

POND
18

SUMP
J1

SUMP
J2

SUMP
J3

SUMP
23A

SUMP
23B

SUMP
14A

SUMP
A5

SUMP
26B

SUMP
26A

WETLAND
H

FILE: Q:\2018\1801747_001_Oak_Creek_Community_\CADD\Ownership Map\Oak Creek Ownership Map.dwg LAST SAVED: Mon, 04/04/22-3:23p PLOTTED: Mon, 04/04/22-3:25p BY: ASerra

OAK CREEK PH. 1,2, & 3
OWNERSHIP MAP

1

JANUARY 2020
OAK CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT OWNERSHIP MAP

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SHEET NO:APPROVED

DESIGNED

DRAWN

Q.C.

BY DATEDESCRIPTIONNO.

LEGEND

CDD OWNED SIDEWALKS

OAK CREEK EASEMENT LINE

POND OWNERSHIP\ MAINTENANCE

COMMON AREA OWNERSHIP\ MAINTENANCE

DISTRICT BOUNDARY LINE

WETLAND

POND CONTROL STRUCTURE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

STORM SEWER INLET AND PIPE

NOTE:
MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPE WITHIN RIGHT OF
WAY IS FROM THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT TO THE
RIGHT OF WAY/ PROPERTY LINE

2000 E. 11 AVE. SUITE 300
TAMPA, FL 33605, PH: (813) 314-0314

Ag
en

da
 P

ag
e 

#6
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4F. 

Agenda Page #68



Vendor Water Source Water Fee Subtotal Total

Heat Wave CDD water -$ 11,845.00$ 11,845.00$

Eric CDD water -$ 12,300.00$ 12,300.00$

Sam Tillis CDD water -$ 12,600.00$ 12,600.00$

Integrity Fire Hydrant Meter 1,670.00$ 14,950.00$ 16,620.00$

*** Notes on Heat Wave 50% deposit, term 6 is an issue, term 8 and 11 are

unacceptable

*** Notes on Eric ( Has done our pressure washing before)

*** Notes on Sam Tillis (Prior LMP Manager)

Agenda Page #69



1

Vega, Mark

To: Mark Vega

Subject: Oak Creek CDD - Community Pressure Washing Project

Attachments: Oak Creek Ownership Map-Ownership Aerial.pdf

All, I need a quote to pressure wash everything all sidewalks, curbs, pool house pool deck, pool house, pool house entry
(everything with pavers outside the pool house) Pool deck gazebo/trellis, two pavilions behind the pool but also give me
a price for only the thick red lined areas on the map.

In addition I have two entry monuments and a gazebo all on Handcart Road and 2030 feet of white three rail fence to be
pressure washed front and back

Last two items I need broken out as options

1 is the playground next to the pool

2 is 150 ft wooden bridge at the end of Laughing Oak Drive next to 34042 Laughing Oak Drive (The deck has a urethane
sealer applied to it from Conspec)

The Board will vote on April 18th and the Board would like the winner to start asap.
Thanks, Mark Vega | District Manager

Scope of Work on page 2 with map on page 3
Agenda Page #70



A

x

x

POND
11A

OAK CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOUNDARY

BLUFF MEADOW
COURT

C
LI

FF
C

R
EE

K 
C

O
U

R
T

PINE SPRINGS DR.

SPARKLING WAY

PI
C

KF
O

R
D

 C
O

U
R

T

DOE PATH COURT

FA
LL

IN
G O

AK

GROVE COURT

BRADFORD HILL

SP
R

IN
G

 O
AK

 T
R

AI
L

W
IN

D
KN

O
B 

C
O

U
R

T

BL
U

E 
AS

H
 C

O
U

R
T

RUNNER OAK DRIVE

BOULDER RUN LOOP

W
ILD ELM COURT

SP
RI

NG
 O

AK
 T

RA
IL

H
AW

K

SPARKLING WAY

COURT

TRAIL

LA
U

G
H

IN
G

 O
AK

 D
R

IV
E

POND
14

POND
15

POND
16

POND
10

POND
8A

POND
3

POND
2B POND

2A
POND

1

POND
6

POND
22

POND
23

POND
25

POND
21

POND
24

POND
26

POND
9

POND
8B

WETLAND
J

WETLAND
A

WETLAND
B

POND
19

SUMP
A2

POND
11B

POND
12

POND
457

POND
17

SUMP
A1

SUMP
A4

SUMP
A3

HANDCART ROAD

POND
18

SUMP
J1

SUMP
J2

SUMP
J3

SUMP
23A

SUMP
23B

SUMP
14A

SUMP
A5

SUMP
26B

SUMP
26A

WETLAND
H

FILE: Q:\2018\1801747_001_Oak_Creek_Community_\CADD\Ownership Map\Oak Creek Ownership Map.dwg LAST SAVED: Thu, 10/15/20-2:57p PLOTTED: Mon, 03/14/22-1:10p BY: ASerra

OAK CREEK PH. 1,2, & 3
OWNERSHIP MAP

1

JANUARY 2020
OAK CREEK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT OWNERSHIP MAP

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SHEET NO:APPROVED

DESIGNED

DRAWN

Q.C.

BY DATEDESCRIPTIONNO.

LEGEND

CDD OWNED SIDEWALKS

OAK CREEK EASEMENT LINE

POND OWNERSHIP\ MAINTENANCE

COMMON AREA OWNERSHIP\ MAINTENANCE

DISTRICT BOUNDARY LINE

WETLAND

POND CONTROL STRUCTURE

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

STORM SEWER INLET AND PIPE

NOTE:
MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPE WITHIN RIGHT OF
WAY IS FROM THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT TO THE
RIGHT OF WAY/ PROPERTY LINE

2000 E. 11 AVE. SUITE 300
TAMPA, FL 33605, PH: (813) 314-0314

Ag
en

da
 P

ag
e 

#7
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
95.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
94.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'  EASEMENT



Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC

27300 Dayflower Blvd.
Wesley Chapel, FL  33544 US
(813)693-5522
info@tampawash.com
http://www.tampawash.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Oak Creek CDD
2654 Cypress Ridge Blvd, Suite 101
Wesley Chapel, Florida  33544

SHIP TO

Oak Creek Community
2654 Cypress Ridge Blvd, Suite 101
Wesley Chapel, Florida  33544

ESTIMATE # 2720
DATE 04/07/2022

  

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Commercial:Commercial Sidewalks

Commercial Sidewalks

Approx. 57,000 sqft.

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

5. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite to 

newly cleaned concrete “Post treatment” to eliminate any left 

over algae also helps keep concrete cleaner longer.

57,000 0.09 5,130.00

Commercial:Curbing

Commercial Curbing

Approx.10,500linft.

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

5. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite to 

newly cleaned concrete “Post treatment” to eliminate any left 

over algae also helps keep concrete cleaner longer.

10,500 0.15 1,575.00

Commercial:Fence Cleaning

Both side

Approx. 1100 lnft.

Procedure:

2,200 1.20 2,640.00

Agenda Page #72



ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

Commercial:Pool Deck

Paver pool deck

Approx. 5,500 sqft

2 Gazeebo structures (roof not included)

Pool entrance structure

Playground pad

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

5. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite to 

newly cleaned concrete “Post treatment” to eliminate any left 

over algae also helps keep concrete cleaner longer.

1 1,475.00 1,475.00

Commercial:Commercial Various Jobs

Wooden Bridge

Approx. 150 lin ft

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

1 650.00 650.00

Commercial:Clean Monument Signs

Commercial Monument Sign Pressure Washed and gazebo 

at both entrances

Procedure:

1. With booster pump spray clean water on all surrounding 

vegetation to help protect from cleaning solution.

2. With use of Booster pump apply cleaning solutions to 

building surface starting at ground level and working your 

way up.  

3. Allow cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes and rinse 

will booster pump to wash away algae, dirt and grime.

4. Upper areas of building usually fascia if really dirty we may 

use an extention pole and scrub dirty areas to help break 

down dirt.

5. May have to repeat steps several times until all algae, dirt 

and grime are removed.

6. After building is cleaned with use of booster pump spray 

1 375.00 375.00

Agenda Page #73



ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

clean water on surrounding vegetation to dilute cleaning 

solution.

 

Payment schedule 

50% due before scheduling

Remainder due 30 days after final inspection or after completion 

notification.

Water sources must be provided to fill our water tanks.  If not possible 

fire hydrant permits will be applied by Heat Wave and cost of permit 

and water will be billed on final invoice.

SUBTOTAL 11,845.00

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $11,845.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

Agenda Page #74



Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC
27300 Dayflower Blvd

Wesley Chapel, FL 33545
(813)693-5522

TERMS OF SERVICE

1. Legally Binding Agreement
By signing a contract with Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC you are signing a legally binding contract for work
to be completed at an agreed upon price. In the event that you break this contract, all deposits made to the
company shall be surrendered as damages.

2. Product Warranties
All Warranties are limited to those offered by the manufactures of the products used. Heat
Wave Pressure Washing, LLC offers no additional warranties. If you ever have a concern regarding our work
Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC should be notified immediately.

3. Water Usage
By signing this agreement, you agree to provide Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC the right to use an on-site
water supply as needed to complete the stated project without compensation. If an exterior water supply is
required it will be at an additional charge. It is the Customer's responsibility to make sure the water supply is
on and working before we arrive. Additional charges will be applied if water is not available.

4. Electrical Usage
By signing this agreement, you agree to provide Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC the right to use an on-site
source of electricity as needed to complete the stated project without compensation. If an exterior source is
required it will be at an additional charge.

5. Color and Tone
The properties and species of wood, age and weather can greatly affect the resulting color or tone of the stain.
Note: Variances may occur on individual boards as well as total project densities and other characteristics vary
across and throughout wood. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC and all of its associates attempt to represent
final finish color and tones as best as possible. While we can often give you an idea of the overall color or tone
you must expect some variance in the overall finish.

6. Fence Pressure Washing
When pressure washing an outdoor fence, Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC only washes the part of the
inside of your fence and both sides of the gate. Doing the outside of the fence requires Heat Wave Pressure
Washing, LLC to stand and spray chemicals and water on your neighbor’s property, grass, shrubs or trees.
Therefore, if you want both sides of your fence washed Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC must have written
permission from your neighbor(s) to also be on their property and spraying water and chemicals on their
property, shrubs, grass, trees, etc.

7. Courtesy
While Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC is on location on your property, you are responsible for keeping all
children and pets, as well as other individuals away from the work area. Children and pets must be kept off
work surface for at least 24 hours after our work is complete. This is for your safety.

Agenda Page #75



8. Payments
All payments to Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC are due as per the contract schedule and are to be paid by
check, money order, cash or credit cards. All balances are ALWAYS paid due and payable upon completion of
the job. A late fee of 18 % will be assessed on all balances not paid upon completion of work. The customer
agrees to pay any collection cost incurred by Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC related to the collection
process of outstanding balances. This includes all attorney fees and court costs.

9. Scheduling
Scheduling of a business in which productivity relies upon the weather can be difficult. Inclement weather may
affect scheduling. We try our best to keep scheduling conflicts to a
a minimum, however circumstances that are beyond our control may affect your project start and completion
dates. You will be notified of any changes.

10. Removal & Replacement of Deck Contents
Removal and replacement of grills, deck furniture, planters, etc. is the responsibilities of the client. Should we
need to remove items from the area being cleaned, we will not be responsible for breakage or for storage
issues. An additional charge will be applied for the time & labor devoted to the removal and replacement of
these items.

11. Damages
Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC is not responsible for damages due to improperly installed siding, loose
shingles, broken or open windows, improperly sealed windows, wood rot, defective construction, improperly
secured wires, lose or improperly installed gutters and leaders, and improper caulking. In every aluminum
siding case, and in some cases in vinyl siding, the sun and weather will bleach the color and cause it to fade.
Power washing, which entails removal of chalky, gritty buildup of failing surface materials, may cause the
faded aspects of the vinyl or aluminum to stand out. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC will not be responsible
for such conditions. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC will not be responsible for loose mortar that may
dislodge during the cleaning process. Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC is not responsible for any debris found
in pools or discoloration of water, especially after stripping around pool areas. Heat Wave Pressure Washing
LLC is not responsible for any damages exceeding the cost of the project we are doing for you.

12. Plants, Trees, Shrubs, Flowers, Fish, etc.
Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC takes special precautions to protect all your potted and garden plants, trees
and shrub life. We ask all our customers to remove any potted plants in the area of being pressure washed.
Those potted plants left within the pressure washing area are the sole responsibility of the customer.

Wildlife, caged animals or fish in ponds, pools, etc. are the sole responsibility of the customer. They should be
removed from the area or placed under a cover provided by the customer when the pressure washing is taking
place. It is the sole discretion of the customer when the animal life can return to its normal location. Heat
Wave Pressure Washing, LLC is not responsible for any loss.

If requested by customer, Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC can protect your plant life with a tarp cover over
your vegetation. Additional Cover Request     □ Yes     □ No 

Before pressure washing we rinse all vegetation and after cleaning is complete, all surrounding vegetation will
be rinsed utilizing an application of SH neutralizer, which may leave a white film. Most times this is enough to
protect your tree and plant life, but sometimes for whatever reason, we may lose a plant. Minor wilting and
discoloration is common and we recommend you thoroughly wash down your vegetation after any pressure
washing on roofs or homes, etc., to minimize any residual effect. We suggest any new plants be established at

least Sixty (60) days before pressure washing around them. Customers must inform Heat Wave Pressure

Agenda Page #76



Washing, LLC if any vegetation has been planted less than Sixty (60) days. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC
is therefore not responsible for any minor loss of vegetation or any damages exceeding the cost of the project
we are doing for you. ________ Please Initial

13. Stains
Some stains cannot be removed by power washing. Tree sap, artillery fungus, splatters from stain, paint and
oil stains are examples of materials that cannot be removed by conventional means. We make ever attempt to
point out these areas to the customer when quoting the project. Sometimes, these stains cannot be removed
at all.

14. Structure
Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC expects your property to be in good repair. This includes but is not limited
to all electrical service including receptacles and light fixtures. Doors and windows shall also be weathertight.
A working water source must be provided and should be inspected by client before arrival of job from Heat
Wave Pressure Washing, LLC . If water source needs to be provided by Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC,
client should notify Heat Waver Pressure Washing LLC before he arrives. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC is
not responsible for damages as a result of water infiltration or infusion from leaks from roof, poor or improper
installation of doors and windows or walls around house and the maintenance and repair of electrical and
water or related items. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC does not guarantee removal of artillery fungus from
exterior house surfaces.

15. Windows
Windows may become water spotted as a result of our services. Window cleaning is NOT included but can be
done for an additional charge.

Date________________

Price $________________

Accepted by

Customer

Agenda Page #77



Agenda Page #78



T & S Lath and Stucco

15932 14th street
Dade City, FL  33523 US
+1 3529999994
tiva.tslathandstucco@gmail.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Mark Vega

ESTIMATE # 1006
DATE 04/14/2022

  

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

pressure washing 1 12,500.00 12,500.00

 

Pressure washing all sidewalks and around pool area and two entry 

monuments and a gazebo and 2030 feet of white three rail fence.

TOTAL $12,500.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

Agenda Page #79



 
1 

                        

 
 

How Integrity Can Meet Your Property’s Needs: 
 

• Competitive pricing 
 

• Schedules that flow with your community’s demands 
 

• Minimize disruption to community  
 

• Preventative maintenance programs for concrete surfaces and roofs 
 

• Professional employees that are friendly and courteous 
 

• Established contractor since 2004 
 

• Protect your owners from lawsuits: 
- No subcontractors, all workers are our employees and are covered by Worker’s Comp in the roofing 

code 
- We follow OSHA safety standards  

• State-of-the-art equipment to help streamline maintenance and increase production  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Page #80



 
2 

          Proposal of Services     

    

3/31/22 
Oak Creek CDD 

  Laughing Oak Dr. 
Wesley Chapel, FL 33545

 

Scope of Work 
 
Concrete Cleaning & Treatment
Pressure clean concrete to remove mold, dirt and loose oils from surfaces. Treat concrete where needed with mild 
bleach solution to remove stubborn mold and keep areas clean longer.   
 

➢ Sidewalks (RED)          TOTAL = $7,250 
➢ Miami curbing/street gutters/storm drains (YELLOW)     TOTAL = $4,200 
➢ Pool deck          TOTAL = $975 

 
 
Hardscape Cleaning 
Apply mild bleach solution to surfaces then soft wash (rinse with light pressure) to remove mold, dirt and bugs from 
surfaces. 
 

➢ Entryway gazebo & 2 monuments       TOTAL = $175 
➢ Pool house, pavilion and 2 gazebos behind      TOTAL = $425 
➢ Playground          TOTAL = $200 
➢ Both sides of split-rail fencing (GREEN)       TOTAL = $1,400 
➢ Wooden bridge (BLUE)         TOTAL = $325 

 
 

GRAND TOTAL (cost based on volume pricing) = $_______________ 

 
 
 

Hydrant Meter  
Hydrant meter deposit and usage (Pasco County Utilities)     TOTAL = $1,670 

*BOD to pay for meter upfront – Once meter is returned, majority of deposit will be refunded in 4-6 weeks* 

 
 

 

Agenda Page #81



 
3 

 
 

 

Agenda Page #82



 
4 

 
 
 

Site Plan 
 

➢ Water source to be supplied by IPC 
➢ 2-man crew onsite to perform work  
➢ Client to ensure residents are noticed regarding schedule  
➢ Ops manager to visit site periodically  

 

Project Duration & Payment 
 

➢ 6-7 days ➢ 25% down, remainder due Net 30

  

Terms & Conditions 
 
General. This proposal is subject to change without notice and is automatically withdrawn on the 15th day following the date of issue if not 
accepted in writing and a copy of this proposal returned to INTEGRITY PRESSURE CLEANING, INC. (“Contractor”). If Customer cancels this prior to 
the start of work, Customer is liable for 15% of the total Agreement price as liquidated damages, because Contractor is unable to accurately 
measure its damages for the cancellation of the Agreement. By executing this Agreement, Customer and Contractor agree that the liquidated 
damages amount is not a penalty. Contractor reserves the right to withdraw this proposal at any time prior to its acceptance or to cancel this 
Agreement prior to commencing work if the cost to complete the work varies from the initial standard pricing due to a typographical or 
mathematical error. As used in this Agreement, (a) the word “or” is not exclusive, (b) the word “including” is always without limitation, (c) “days” 
means calendar days and (d) singular words include plural and vice versa. 
 
Access. Customer shall provide Contractor with adequate access to electricity, water and other utilities as needed, the work site, and the work area 
adjacent to the structure. Customer represents to Contractor that all of the existing surfaces are suitable to receive the cleaning and/or work 
identified in the scope of work. Customer shall provide Contractor with access to deliver and/or remove materials and debris. Prior to the 
commencement of work, Customer shall provide Contractor with all information necessary to prepare any necessary permitting. Customer and/or 
owner shall hold harmless and indemnify Contractor from all damages, liabilities, attorney’s fees and other expenses incurred as a result of the 
Customer and/or Customer’s failure to fulfill its obligations under this paragraph. 
 

Agenda Page #83



 
5 

Payment Terms. Contractor reserves the right to require a deposit in excess of 10%, and Customer hereby waives the requirements of Florida 
Statute 489.123. Customer agrees to pay interest at the rate of 1 1/2 % per month (ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE OF 18%), unless otherwise 
required by law, on the balance of any and all unpaid amounts. Payments received shall be applied first to interest on all outstanding invoices and 
then to the principal amount of the oldest outstanding invoices. The total Agreement amount, including the charges for changes/extras outside the 
scope of work identified herein, shall be payable to Contractor in accordance with the Agreement. No portion of the agreed upon payment may be 
withheld, back charged or used as a setoff of the agreed upon payment amount without the written consent of Contractor. Customer 
acknowledges and agrees that it has an independent obligation to pay Contractor. If Customer does not make payment, Contractor shall be entitled 
to recover from Customer all costs of collection incurred by Contractor, including attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses incurred whether or not 
litigation is initiated. Collection matters may be processed through litigation or arbitration at Contractor’s sole discretion. If Customer fails to pay 
Contractor in accordance with this Agreement, then Contractor may, at its sole discretion, suspend performance of all work until full payment is 
made, and/or terminate this Agreement. If a suspension occurs that is not caused solely by the Contractor, the Agreement sum shall be increased 
by the amount of contractor’s reasonable costs of shut-down delay and start-up. Contractor reserves the right to terminate the Agreement for 
convenience. 
 
Site Conditions. Should the Contractor discover concealed or unknown conditions at the site that vary from those conditions ordinarily 
encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the work of the character identified in this Agreement, then the Agreement amount shall be 
equitably adjusted upon notice thereof from the Contractor to the Customer. 
 
Restrictions and Requirements. Contractor shall carry worker’s compensation, automobile liability, commercial general liability and any other 
insurance required by law. In the event that state, county, or municipal codes or regulations require work not expressly set forth in this Agreement 
or that differs materially from that generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this Agreement, all extra costs for 
Contractor’s labor and materials shall be the sole obligation of the Customer Prior to executing this Agreement, Customer shall notify Contractor in 
writing of all property and deed restrictions and/or covenants that relate to or restrict the work contemplated under this Agreement. Contractor 
shall not be responsible for work performed that does not comply with or conform to the property restrictions or covenants. Customer shall pay 
Contractor for all work performed in violation of any covenant or restriction if Customer failed to notify Contractor in writing prior to executing this 
Agreement. 
 
Customer Protection of Property. Customer shall be solely responsible for any pre-existing damages to curbs, walkways, driveways, structures, 
HVAC, utility lines, pipes, gutters, landscaping, appurtenances, or other real or personal property at the project location during work. Unless 
otherwise specified, there is no specific completion date for Contractor’s work. Contractor will perform the work within a reasonable time and in a 
workmanlike manner. 
 
Choice of Law, Venue and Attorney’s Fees. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Venue of any proceeding arising 
out of this Agreement shall be Pasco County, Florida. The non-prevailing party in any legal or equitable action arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement including arbitration, administrative, appellate and/or bankruptcy proceedings shall reimburse the prevailing party on demand for all 
attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses incurred by the prevailing party in connection with the action. 
 
Jury Trial Waiver. In the event there is litigation over the enforcement of a collection matter or construction lien, the parties KNOWINGLY, 
VOLUNTARILY, IRREVOCABLY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT TO ANY LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF OR 
PERTAINING TO THE AGREEMENT, OR ANY COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALINGS, STATEMENTS (WHETHER VERBAL OR WRITTEN) OR 
ACTIONS OF ANY PERSON OR PARTY RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT; THIS IRREVOCABLE WAIVER OF THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL BEING A 
MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR THE PARTIES TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
Damage Limitation. Customer understands that the services contemplated under this Agreement involve pressure washing and other actions that 
may cause physical alteration to the site. Customer understands and accepts the risks inherent in the actions used to provide the services and holds 
Company harmless for any damages resulting from spraying of water or bleach onto areas requested to be cleaned by Customer. Customer also 
understands and accepts that performance of the work is no guarantee of the removal of stains, mold, mildew or other issues associated with the 
site and Contractor is in no way liable for any pre-existing conditions that are unable to be cleaned. In no event, whether based on contract, 
warranty (express or implied), tort, federal or state statute or otherwise arising from or relating to the work and services performed under the 
Agreement, shall Contractor be liable for special, consequential, punitive, or indirect damages, including loss of use or loss of profits. 
 
Warranties. Unless otherwise provided: THERE ARE NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. The sole warranty associated with the work will be 
issued by Roof-A-Cide US, Inc. or one of its affiliates or subsidiaries. This warranty is not issued by Contractor and any claim under the warranty 
must be made directly to Roof-A-Cide US, Inc. under the terms of the warranty. 
 
Claims. It is Customer’s duty to notify Contractor in writing within three (3) days of the occurrence of any claim, defect or deficiency arising out of 
work, services or materials provided by Contractor under this Agreement (“Occurrence”). Failure of the Customer to provide written notice of the 
Occurrence shall result in the Customer waiving all claims that may be brought against Contractor arising out of or relating to the Occurrence, 
including claims arising in law, equity, contract, warranty (express or implied), tort or federal or state statutory claims. 
 
 

Agenda Page #84



 
6 

Acts of God. Contractor shall not be responsible for loss, damage or delay caused by circumstances beyond its reasonable control, including but not 
limited to acts of God, weather, accidents, fire, vandalism, federal, state or local law, regulation or order; strikes, jurisdictional disputes, failure or 
delay of transportation, shortage of or inability to obtain materials, equipment or labor; changes in the work and delays caused by others. In the 
event of these occurrences, Contractor's time for performance under this proposal shall be extended for a time sufficient to permit completion of 
the Work. 
 
Customer Delay. The Parties agree that the Contractor should be permitted to execute its work without interruption. If Contractor’s work is 
delayed at any time by any act or neglect of Customer and/or Customer’s representatives, employees, agents, guests, or invitees, or any other 
contractor employed by the Customer, or by any changes ordered in the work, then Contractor shall be reimbursed or paid for all additional costs 
or damages incurred as a result. This shall include damages related to lost use of equipment caused by the delay. 
 
Working Hours. The proposal is based upon the performance of all work during Contractor’s regular working hours, excluding weekends and 
National holidays. Extra charges will be made for overtime and all work performed other than during Contractor’s regular working hours if required 
by Customer. 
 
Notification. Customer shall be responsible for notifying its residents of any work performed by Contractor. Customer shall be liable for any delay 
in work resulting from a resident obstructing or delaying the work. 
 
Construction and Interpretation. Each provision of the Agreement shall be construed as if both parties mutually drafted this Agreement. If a 
provision of this Agreement (or the application of it) is held by a court or arbitrator to be invalid or unenforceable, that provision will be deemed 
separable from the remaining provisions of the Agreement, will be reformed/enforced to the extent that it is valid and enforceable, and will not 
affect the validity or interpretation of the other provisions or the application of that provision to a person or circumstance to which it is valid and 
enforceable. Headings are for convenience only and do not affect interpretation. This Agreement records the entire agreement of the parties and 
supersedes any previous or contemporaneous agreement, understanding, or representation, oral or written, by the parties. All documents/exhibits 
referred to in this Agreement are an integral part of the Agreement and are incorporated by reference. This Agreement incorporates the 
documents entitled “Proposal/Contract,” “Statutory Warnings,” and “Work Authorization” (if applicable), as well as any other document signed by 
both parties as part of this Agreement. Customer represents that it has read and fully understood the Contract Documents, or has had an 
opportunity to consult with counsel, prior to executing this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and any other Contract 
Document, the order of precedence is Work Authorization (to the extent it exists) followed by these terms and conditions. 
 

 
Note: Signing this proposal indicates the proposed scope and any sketch outlines above have been reviewed thoroughly. Any 
additional scope will require an additional cost. This contract may be withdrawn if not accepted in 90 days. 
 

 
Printed Name _________________________________________ 
 
Authorized Signature ___________________________________         Date _______________ 

Agenda Page #85



Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC

27300 Dayflower Blvd.
Wesley Chapel, FL  33544 US
(813)693-5522
info@tampawash.com
http://www.tampawash.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Oak Creek CDD
2654 Cypress Ridge Blvd, Suite 101
Wesley Chapel, Florida  33544

SHIP TO

Oak Creek Community
2654 Cypress Ridge Blvd, Suite 101
Wesley Chapel, Florida  33544

ESTIMATE # 2720
DATE 04/07/2022

  

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Commercial:Commercial Sidewalks

Commercial Sidewalks

Approx. 57,000 sqft.

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

5. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite to 

newly cleaned concrete “Post treatment” to eliminate any left 

over algae also helps keep concrete cleaner longer.

57,000 0.09 5,130.00

Commercial:Curbing

Commercial Curbing

Approx.10,500linft.

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

5. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite to 

newly cleaned concrete “Post treatment” to eliminate any left 

over algae also helps keep concrete cleaner longer.

10,500 0.15 1,575.00

Commercial:Fence Cleaning

Both side

Approx. 1100 lnft.

Procedure:

2,200 1.20 2,640.00

Agenda Page #86



ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

Commercial:Pool Deck

Paver pool deck

Approx. 5,500 sqft

2 Gazeebo structures (roof not included)

Pool entrance structure

Playground pad

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

5. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite to 

newly cleaned concrete “Post treatment” to eliminate any left 

over algae also helps keep concrete cleaner longer.

1 1,475.00 1,475.00

Commercial:Commercial Various Jobs

Wooden Bridge

Approx. 150 lin ft

Procedure:

1. With use of booster pump apply Sodium Hypochlorite, 

surfactant and water to concrete surface.

2. Allowing cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes.

3. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer and surface cleaner 

wash surface of concrete.

4. With use of 10 gpm pressure washer rinse concrete 

surface to remove cleaning solution, algae, dirt and grime.

1 650.00 650.00

Commercial:Clean Monument Signs

Commercial Monument Sign Pressure Washed and gazebo 

at both entrances

Procedure:

1. With booster pump spray clean water on all surrounding 

vegetation to help protect from cleaning solution.

2. With use of Booster pump apply cleaning solutions to 

building surface starting at ground level and working your 

way up.  

3. Allow cleaning solution to dwell for 3-8 minutes and rinse 

will booster pump to wash away algae, dirt and grime.

4. Upper areas of building usually fascia if really dirty we may 

use an extention pole and scrub dirty areas to help break 

down dirt.

5. May have to repeat steps several times until all algae, dirt 

and grime are removed.

6. After building is cleaned with use of booster pump spray 

1 375.00 375.00

Agenda Page #87



ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

clean water on surrounding vegetation to dilute cleaning 

solution.

 

Payment schedule 

50% due before scheduling

Remainder due 30 days after final inspection or after completion 

notification.

Water sources must be provided to fill our water tanks.  If not possible 

fire hydrant permits will be applied by Heat Wave and cost of permit 

and water will be billed on final invoice.

SUBTOTAL 11,845.00

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $11,845.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

Agenda Page #88



Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC 
27300 Dayflower Blvd 

Wesley Chapel, FL 33545 
(813)693-5522 

 
TERMS OF SERVICE 

 
1. Legally Binding Agreement 
By signing a contract with Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC you are signing a legally binding contract for work 
to be completed at an agreed upon price. In the event that you break this contract, all deposits made to the 
company shall be surrendered as damages. 
 
2. Product Warranties 
All Warranties are limited to those offered by the manufactures of the products used.  Heat 
Wave Pressure Washing, LLC offers no additional warranties. If you ever have a concern regarding our work 
Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC should be notified immediately. 
 
3. Water Usage 
By signing this agreement, you agree to provide Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC the right to use an on-site 
water supply as needed to complete the stated project without compensation. If an exterior water supply is 
required it will be at an additional charge. It is the Customer's responsibility to make sure the water supply is 
on and working before we arrive. Additional charges will be applied if water is not available.  
 
4. Electrical Usage 
By signing this agreement, you agree to provide Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC the right to use an on-site 
source of electricity as needed to complete the stated project without compensation. If an exterior source is 
required it will be at an additional charge. 
 
5. Color and Tone 
The properties and species of wood, age and weather can greatly affect the resulting color or tone of the stain. 
Note: Variances may occur on individual boards as well as total project densities and other characteristics vary 
across and throughout wood. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC and all of its associates attempt to represent 
final finish color and tones as best as possible. While we can often give you an idea of the overall color or tone 
you must expect some variance in the overall finish. 
 
6. Courtesy 
While Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC is on location on your property, you are responsible for keeping all 
children and pets, as well as other individuals away from the work area. Children and pets must be kept off 
work surface for at least 24 hours after our work is complete. This is for your safety. 
 
7. Scheduling 
Scheduling of a business in which productivity relies upon the weather can be difficult. Inclement weather may 
affect scheduling. We try our best to keep scheduling conflicts to a 
a minimum, however circumstances that are beyond our control may affect your project start and completion 
dates. You will be notified of any changes. 
 
 
 

Agenda Page #89



8. Removal & Replacement of Deck Contents 
Removal and replacement of grills, deck furniture, planters, etc. is the responsibilities of the client. Should we 
need to remove items from the area being cleaned, we will not be responsible for breakage or for storage 
issues. An additional charge will be applied for the time & labor devoted to the removal and replacement of 
these items. 
 
9. Damages 
Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC is not responsible for any damages exceeding the cost of the project we are 
doing for you.  
  
10.  Plants, Trees, Shrubs, Flowers, Fish, etc. 
Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC takes special precautions to protect all your potted and garden plants, trees 
and shrub life.  We ask all our customers to remove any potted plants in the area of being pressure washed.  
Those potted plants left within the pressure washing area are the sole responsibility of the customer.   
 
Wildlife, caged animals or fish in ponds, pools, etc. are the sole responsibility of the customer.  They should be 
removed from the area or placed under a cover provided by the customer when the pressure washing is taking 
place.  It is the sole discretion of the customer when the animal life can return to its normal location.   Heat 
Wave Pressure Washing, LLC is not responsible for any loss. 
 
Before pressure washing we rinse all vegetation and after cleaning is complete, all surrounding vegetation will 
be rinsed utilizing an application of SH neutralizer, which may leave a white film.  Most times this is enough to 
protect your tree and plant life, but sometimes for whatever reason, we may lose a plant.  Minor wilting and 
discoloration is common and we recommend you thoroughly wash down your vegetation after any pressure 
washing on roofs or homes, etc., to minimize any residual effect.  We suggest any new plants be established at 
least Sixty (60) days before pressure washing around them.  Customers must inform Heat Wave Pressure 
Washing, LLC if any vegetation has been planted less than Sixty (60) days.   Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC 
is therefore not responsible for any minor loss of vegetation or any damages exceeding the cost of the project 
we are doing for you. ________ Please Initial 
 
11. Stains 
Some stains cannot be removed by power washing. Tree sap, artillery fungus, splatters from stain, paint and 
oil stains are examples of materials that cannot be removed by conventional means. We make ever attempt to 
point out these areas to the customer when quoting the project. Sometimes, these stains cannot be removed 
at all. 
 
12.  Structure 
Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC expects your property to be in good repair. This includes but is not limited 
to all electrical service including receptacles and light fixtures. Doors and windows shall also be weathertight. 
A working water source must be provided and should be inspected by client before arrival of job from Heat 
Wave Pressure Washing, LLC .  If water source needs to be provided by Heat Wave Pressure Washing LLC, 
client should notify Heat Waver Pressure Washing LLC before he arrives.  Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC is 
not responsible for damages as a result of water infiltration or infusion from leaks from roof, poor or improper 
installation of doors and windows or walls around house and the maintenance and repair of electrical  and 
water or related items. Heat Wave Pressure Washing, LLC does not guarantee removal of artillery fungus from 
exterior house surfaces. 
 

13. Windows 

Agenda Page #90



Windows may become water spotted as a result of our services. Window cleaning is NOT included but can be 
done for an additional charge. 

 
Date________________ 
 
Price  $________________ 
 
Accepted by 
 
 
 
Customer 
 

Agenda Page #91



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4G. 
  

Agenda Page #92



Agenda Page #93



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4H. 
  

Agenda Page #94



Agenda Page #95



Agenda Page #96



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 I. 
  

Agenda Page #97



Page 1 of 3 

 

                                                                       PLEASE REMIT PAYMENT 

TO                                                                                                                                                                                  

 
  p r o p o s a l    

 

Proposal Submitted to: OAK CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (INFRAMARK) 
VIA E-MAIL / FAX :  mark.vega@inframark.com  

DATE: 5/17/22                                                                 

ATTN: MARK VEGA 

JOB ADDRESS: 34300 SPRING OAK TRAIL WESLEY CHAPEL FLORIDA 33545 

LEGAL ADDRESS: OAK CREEK PHASE ONE PB 53 PG 040 TRACT A OR 7507 PG 1709 

 

WE HEREBY PROPOSE TO FURNISH THE MATERIAL AND LABOR NECESSARY FOR THE 

COMPLETION: ADA BI-LEVEL WATER DRINKING FOUNTAIN ELKAY 

 

WORK WILL CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING: 

 

1) REPLACE EXISTING DRINKING FOUNTAIN AT THE POOL BETWEEN THE MEN’S AND 

WOMEN’S BATHROOM BEHIND THE SECURITY GATE. 

 

2) ONE YEAR COMPLETE WARRANTY (DOES NOT OVER RIDE MANUFACTURERS 

WARRANTY 

 

3) FACTORY WARRANTY  COVERS FROM DATE OF INSTALLATION AND UNDER 

NORMAL USE FOR 1 YEAR 

 

4) THE COMPRESSOR AND HERMETICALLY SEALED REFRIDGERATION SYSTEM HAS 

AN ADDITIONAL 4 YEARS PAST THE FIRST YEAR.  

 

 

 

INITIAL______ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tri-Care Services Inc. 

6740 Bluff Meadow Ct. 

Wesley Chapel Fl 33545 

O 727-546-2059 

F 813-780-6526 

http://www.tricareservicesinc.com  

Agenda Page #98

mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
http://www.tricareservicesinc.com/
mavega
Approved



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 

  p r o p o s a l    
                                                                     (CONTINUED) 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT LISTED BELOW: 

 

1) PLUMBING & GAS SHALL BE INSTALLED TO STANDARD OF THE FLORIDA 

PLUMBING CODE LATEST EXISTING CODE BEING ENFORCE APPLICABLE TO 

THE DATE OF SIGNED PROPOSAL. 

 

2) PLUMBING AND GAS INSTALLATION IS GUARANTEED FREE FOR ONE YEAR. 

NO OTHER WARRANTIES ARE EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED.  

 

3) CHANGE ORDERS: ANY ALTERATION OR DEVIATON FROM THE ABOVE 

SPECIFICATIONS INVOLVING EXTRA COSTS WILL BE MADE ONLY UPON 

WRITTIEN AGREEMENT AND WILL BECOME AN EXTRA CHARGE ABOVE THE 

CONTRACT PRICE TO BE PAID PER BILLING INVOICE.  

 

4) PLUMBING CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE HOLES IN THE BUILDING TO GAIN 

ACCESS FOR ROUTING SANITARY, WATER & GAS PIPING AND SHALL NOT BE 

HELD LIABLE IN ANY WAY FOR LABOR OR COSTS INCURRED FOR PAINTING, 

TEXTURING , REPAIRING WALLS , CEILINGS, ASPHALT PAVING , CONCRETE 

CUTTING (INDOOR OR OUTDOOR) OR FINISHINGS.  

 

5) DELAY/DELAY’S PLUMBING CONTRACTOR WILL BE EXCUSED FOR ANY 

DELAY BEYOND OUR CONTROL, THESE DELAYS MAY INCLUDE, BUT ARE 

NOT LIMITED TO THE ACTS OF GOD, INCLEMENT WEATHER , ACTS OF 

OWNER OR PUBLIC AUTHORITY, OR OTHER UNFORESEEN CONTINGENCIES.  

 

6) ANY FAILURE TOMAKE PAYMENTS TO PLUMBING CONTRACTOR IS 

SUBJECT TO A CLAIM AGAINST THE PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

APPLICABLE LIEN LAWS.  

 

7) OVERDUE ACCOUNTS WILL BE CHARGED A LATE CHARGE AT THE RATE OF 

1.5%.  

 

 

 

INITIAL______ 

Tri-Care Services Inc. 

6740 Bluff Meadow Ct. 

Wesley Chapel Fl 33545 

O 727-546-2059 

F 813-780-6526 

http://www.tricareservicesinc.com  

Agenda Page #99

http://www.tricareservicesinc.com/
mavega
Approved



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

  p r o p o s a l    
                                                                     (CONTINUED) 

8) IN THE EVENT ANY PARTY TO THIS CONTRACT COMMENCES ANY ACTIONS 

LEGAL OR OTHERWISE TO COLLECT THE CONTRACT PRICE, THE 

PREVAILING PARTY SHALL BE ENTITLED TO RECOVER ATTORNEYS FEES 

AND ALL OTHER COSTS INCURRED IN CONNECTION WITH THE ACTION.  

 

9) PARTY SUBMITTED TO SHALL GIVE WRITTEN NOTICE OF A BACK CHARGE 

TO PLUMBING CONTRACTOR WITHIN TEN DAYS OF THE ACT-GIVING RISE 

TO THE BACK CHARGE. IF NO SUCH NOTICE IS GIVEN WITHIN THE TEN-DAY 

PERIOD THE BACK CHARGE SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED. 

 

10) ANY PLUMBING FIXTURES, APPLIANCES OR APPURTENANCES INCLUDING 

HARDWARE & FITTINGS NOT SUPPLIED OR PURCHASED BY TRI-CARE 

SERVICES INC. WILL NOT BE UNDER ANY WARRANTY AND WILL 

CONSTITUTE ADDITIONAL CHARGES IF WE HAVE TO SERVICE, INSTALL OR 

REPAIR THE ABOVE MENTIONED.  

 

 

All material and work are guaranteed to be as above specifications and installed in a worklike 

manner for the sum of: ONE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED DOLLARS 

 

AMOUNT TOTAL: $1,600.00 

Payments are as follows: UPON COMPLETION  

 

Per Tri Care Services                                                                           Proposal good for 30 days. 

 
Acceptance and signature of this proposal makes this a binding contract. The above prices, specifications and 

conditions are hereby accepted. You are authorizing work to be started, and payments will be made as outlined. 

Estimator (axel) 

 

SIGNATURE______________________________Date_________________ 

 

SIGNATURE_(PRINT)_____________________________Date_________________ 
 
  

LICENSED * BONDED * INSURED 
                                http://www.tricareservicesinc.com 

Tri-Care Services Inc. 

6740 Bluff Meadow Ct. 

Wesley Chapel Fl 33545 

O 727-546-2059 

F 813-780-6526 

http://www.tricareservicesinc.com  

Mark A. Vega     05/18/22

Agenda Page #100

http://www.tricareservicesinc.com/
http://www.tricareservicesinc.com/
mavega
Approved

mavega
Stamp



Fifth Order of Business

Agenda Page #101



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5C 

Agenda Page #102



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5Ci. 
  

Agenda Page #103



5Cia 

Agenda Page #104



From: Vega, Mark
To: Slaughter, Mona
Subject: Oak Creek CDD RE: Ponds treatment behind 6706 boulder run loop
Date: Thursday, May 5, 2022 11:14:49 AM

 














































Agenda Page #105

mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:mona.slaughter@inframark.com
mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:kevin.wilt@solitudelake.com
mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:staff@oakcreekcdd.org;
mailto:Misty.Gordon@Inframark.com


 
On Mar 31, 2022, at 1:25 AM, Vega, Mark <mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com> wrote:
﻿
Mr. Portillo, 
The CDD does not spray for mosquitos.
 
I recommend you contact Pasco County Mosquito Control and report your concern.
 
Thanks you, Mark Vega | District Manager

From: john portillo
Sent: Wednesday, March 30, 2022 6:00 PM
To: Vega, Mark <mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com>
Cc: mailto:staff@oakcreekcdd.org; Gilbert, Misty <mailto:Misty.Gilbert@inframark.com>
Subject: Ponds treatment behind 6706 boulder run loop
 
Hello
 
 Hope you all are doing well - just want to find out if the ponds are being treated anytime soon as I am noticing a
huge increase on - mosquitoes and similar - we are having a swarm around the area of this creatures 
 
I have orkin that treats my house once a month and they came out another time within a month and said the issue is
coming from the ponds behind 
 
Please let us know when we can see some treatment so this swarm is reduced and make it possible to walk to my car
without swatting dozen hundred of these annoying flying creatures 
 
Thanks Johnny portillo 

Agenda Page #106

mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:staff@oakcreekcdd.org;
mailto:Misty.Gilbert@inframark.com


Solitude Lake Management
Oak Creek CDD 11A-11B

Britestar 3

Compressor Cabinet

 AirStation

BottomLine Tubing

Shoreline Valve Box

1" PVC Pipe

Surface Acres: 1.3

Perimeter Feet: 1,352

Lake Volume, Gal.: 3,192,044

Total Acre Feet: 9.8

# Diffuser Disks: 3

CFM /  Disk: 0.73

GPM /  Disk: 1,198

Daily Pumpage: 5,176,100

Turnovers/Day: 1.62

System PSI: 6.6

Date: 3/30/22

Site and  System 

Specifications

Legend

Optional Equipment

Agenda Page #107



SOLAR AERATOR INSTALLATION SERVICES CONTRACT

CUSTOMER NAME: Oak Creek CDD
SUBMITTED TO: Mr. Mark Vega
CONTRACT DATE: March 31, 2022
SUBMITTED BY: Chris Byrne
SERVICES: Sites 11A and 11B

This agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date indicated above, and is by and between
SOLitude Lake Management, LLC (“Solitude” or the “Company”) and the customer identified above (the
“Customer”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

1. The Services. SOLitude will provide services at the Customer’s property as described in Schedule A
attached hereto:

2. PAYMENT TERMS. The fee for the Solar Aeration Installation Services is $7,202.00. The Customer shall
pay 50% of this service fee upon execution of this Agreement.  The balance (remaining 50% of fee) will be
invoiced to Customer by SOLitude following completion of the Services.
For any work completed or materials in storage on the customer’s behalf at the end of each month, the
company will invoice and the customer will be responsible for paying the percent of the total work
completed as of that date, less any previous deposit paid.  Should the work performed be subject to any
local, state, or federal jurisdiction, agency, or other organization of authority for sales or other taxes or fees
in addition to those expressly covered by this contract, customer will be invoiced and responsible for
paying said additional taxes in addition to the fee above.  Customer agrees to pay all invoices within thirty
(30) days of invoice date.  The Customer will be liable for any returned check fees and any collection
costs, including reasonable attorney fees and court costs, for any invoices not otherwise timely paid, and
interest at the rate of 1% per month may be added to all unpaid invoices.  Company shall be reimbursed
by the Customer for any non-routine expenses, administrative fees, compliance fees, or any other similar
expense that are incurred as a result of requirements placed on the Company by the Customer that are
not covered specifically by the written specifications of this contract.

3. TERM AND EXPIRATION. This Agreement is for a one-time service as described in the attached
Schedule A.  Any additional services will be provided only upon additional terms as agreed to by the
parties in writing.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #108



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 2 of 6

4. DISCLAIMER. SOLitude is not responsible for the failure of any treatment, equipment installation, or
other work that result from dam or other structural failures, severe weather and storms, flooding, or other
acts of God that are outside of the control of SOLitude.
Customer understands and acknowledges that there are irrigation restrictions associated with many of the
products used to treat lakes and ponds.  The customer is responsible for notifying SOLitude in advance of
the contract signing and the start of the contract if they utilize any of the water in their lakes or ponds for
irrigation purposes.  The customer accepts full responsibility for any issues that may arise from the irrigation
of turf, ornamentals, trees, crops, or any other plants as a result of treated water being used by the
customer for irrigation without the consent or knowledge of SOLitude.
Although there is rarely direct fish toxicity with the products used for treatment when applied at the
labeled rate, or the installation and normal operation of the equipment we install, there is a risk under
certain circumstances of significant dissolved oxygen drops.  This risk is most severe in times of extremely
hot weather and warm water temperatures, as these are the conditions during which dissolved oxygen
levels are naturally at their lowest levels.  Oftentimes lakes and ponds will experience natural fish kills under
these conditions even if no work is performed.  Every effort, to include the method and timing of
application, the choice of products and equipment used, and the skill and training of the staff, is made to
avoid such problems.  However, the customer understands and accepts that there is always a slight risk of
the occurrence of adverse conditions outside the control of SOLitude that will result in the death of some
fish and other aquatic life.  The customer also understands and accepts that similar risks would remain
even if no work was performed.  The customer agrees to hold SOLitude harmless for any issues with fish or
other aquatic life which occur as described above, or are otherwise outside the direct control of the
SOLitude, unless there is willful negligence on the part of SOLitude.
While SOLitude Lake Management LLC makes every effort to thoroughly inspect the site before providing
this contract proposal or beginning any work, it is possible, without fault or negligence, that unforeseen
circumstances may arise, or that hidden conditions on the site might be found in the course of the
performance of the contract work, which would result in additional time or material costs that exceed this
contract pricing.  Should this occur, the customer will be notified of these unforeseen circumstances or
conditions and be responsible for the costs associated with remedying.  By signing this agreement, the
customer acknowledges that they have informed SOLitude Lake Management® of all known and
relevant current site conditions that would be reasonable to expect could affect our ability to successfully
complete the contract work.

5. INSURANCE AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Solitude will maintain general liability and property
damage insurance as necessary given the scope and nature of the Services. The Company will be
responsible for those damages, claims, causes of action, injuries or legal costs to the extent of its own
direct negligence or misconduct, and then only to an amount not to exceed the annual value of this
Agreement. In no event will any party to this Agreement be liable to the other for incidental,
consequential or purely economic damages.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #109



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 3 of 6

6. FORCE MAJEURE. The Company shall not be liable for any delay in performing the Services, nor
liable for any failure to provide the Services, due to any cause beyond its reasonable control.

7. ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY. Each party represents that neither it nor anyone acting on its
behalf has offered, given, requested or accepted any undue financial or other advantage of any kind in
entering into this Agreement, and that it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to
corruption, competition and bribery in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

8. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws
of the state in which the Services are performed.

9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the subject matter and replaces any prior agreements or understandings, whether in writing or
otherwise. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by written agreement executed by
both parties. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is determined to be void, invalid, or
unenforceable, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be
affected.

10. NOTICE. Any written notice provided under this Agreement may be sent via overnight mail,
certified mail, hand delivery or electronic mail with delivery confirmation, to the individuals and addresses
listed below.

11. BINDING. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the legal
representatives and successors of the parties.

12. FUEL/TRANSPORTATION SURCHARGE. Like many other companies that are impacted by the price of
gasoline, a rise in gasoline prices may necessitate a fuel surcharge. As such, the Company reserves the
right to add a fuel surcharge to Customer's invoice for any increase in the cost of fuel as measured above
the same time period in the prior year (by the National U.S. Average Motor Gasoline-Regular Fuel Price per
Gallon Index reported by the U.S. Department of Energy). The surcharge may be adjusted monthly (up or
down) with the price of gasoline.

13. E-Verify. Solitude Lake Management LLC utilizes the federal E-Verify program in contracts with
public employers as required by Florida State law, and acknowledges all the provisions of Florida Statute
448.095 are incorporated herein by reference and hereby certifies it will comply with the same.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #110



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 4 of 6

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED:

SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT, LLC. OAK CREEK CDD

Signature: ______________________________ Signature:  ______________________________

Printed Name:  __________________________ Printed Name:  __________________________

Title:  ____________________________ Title:  _____________________________

Date:  _________________________ Date:  __________________________

Please Remit All Payments to: Customer’s Address for Notice Purposes:

1320 Brookwood Drive Suite H ____________________________________________
Little Rock AR 72202

____________________________________________
Please Mail All Contracts to:

____________________________________________
2844 Crusader Circle, Suite 450
Virginia Beach, VA 23453

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #111



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 5 of 6

SCHEDULE A - SOLAR AERATION SYSTEM INSTALLATION SERVICES

Aeration System Install:
1. Company will install the following submersed air diffused aeration system:

Vertex BriteStar 70-3 3XL1 Solar Aeration System
Includes: Two (2) 250W Solar Panels with Panel Racking

Digital 24V BLDC Digital Compressor
Pressure Gauge and Pressure Relief Valve
Powder Coated Aluminum Cabinet with cooling fan
Three (3) Self Sinking Stainless Steel AirStation
( Single Membrane / Self Cleaning)
500 ft. underwater self-weighted air delivery tubing (.58” ID)
One-Eight (8) foot Galvanized Pole to mount the Solar Panels
All labor and parts necessary for proper installation

2. Air Diffusers will be evenly placed throughout the lake in the deepest areas possible to
provide for uniform coverage and to maximize the benefits of aeration on the lake.

Warranty:
1. Company warrants that all installation work will be done in a safe and professional

manner.
2. Manufacturer warrants system for three (3) years from the date of installation against

any defects in materials and workmanship.
3. Manufacturer warrants Air Station Membrane Diffusers for five (5) years from the date of

installation against any defects in materials and workmanship.
4. Company warrants all labor and parts necessary for installation of the fountain aeration

system for a period of one (1) year from the date of installation.
5. The manufacturer’s warranty and the SŌLitude Lake Management® warranty will be

voided if:
a. Any person not specifically authorized by the manufacturer and by SŌLitude

Lake Management® performs any service, repair, or other work to the aeration
system during the warranty period.

b. The aeration system is used in any manner inconsistent with its intended use or in

Permitting (when applicable):
1. SOLitude staff will be responsible for the following:

a. Obtaining any Federal, state, or local permits required to perform any work
specified in this contract where applicable.

b. Attending any public hearings or meetings with regulators as required in support
of the permitting process.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #112



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 6 of 6

c. Filing of any notices or year-end reports with the appropriate agency as required
by any related permit.

d. Notifying the Customer of any restrictions or special conditions put on the site with
respect to any permit received, where applicable.

Customer Responsibilities (when applicable):
1. Customer will be responsible for the following:

a. Providing information required for the permit application process upon request.
b. Providing Certified Abutters List for abutter notification where required.
c. Perform any public filings or recordings with any agency or commission

associated with the permitting process, if required.
d. Compliance with any other special requirements or conditions required by the

local municipality.
e. Compliance and enforcement of temporary water-use restrictions where

applicable.

General Qualifications:
1. Company will furnish the personnel, vehicles, boats, equipment, materials, and other

items required to provide the foregoing at its expense.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #113



       Your Custom Vertex Aeration System Design Specifications
Lake Solutions Ver. 17  May 2016

Customer Name: Solitude Lake Management
Contact Name: Chris Byrne
Site Name/Number: Oak Creek CDD 11A-11B
Date: March 30, 2022
Vertex Biologist: Tamerra Jones Hering

Surface Acres: 1.29
Perimeter Feet: 1,352
Slope Ratio Relative to 1 2.0
Average Center Depth: 10.0
Average Depth 7.6
Circulation Constraint Percentage 0.0
Total Acre Feet 9.8
Lake Volume (Gallons) 3,192,044
Monthly Influent Volume (Gallons) 0
Total Volume Requiring Aeration (Gallons) 3,192,044
GPM Per Diffuser Disk 1,198
Gallons Pumped / Day 5,176,100
System Working Pressure (PSI) 6.6
Air Delivery Per Diffuser Disk at Depth(CFM) 0.7
Number of Diffuser Disks Specified: 3
Complete Turnovers / Day 1.62

Terminology
Surface Acres: Total Surface Acres of Entire Water Body

Perimeter Feet: Distance in Feet Along The Shoreline Around the Water Body

Bottom Slope Ratio : Distance in Feet From Shoreline For Each Foot Increase in Depth

Average Center Depth: Average of Depth Readings in Deepest Areas

Average Depth Average Depth of Entire Lake in Feet

Circulation Contraint % Reduced Circulation Due to Narrow Lake Areas, Islands, Etc. 

Total Acre Feet: An Acre Foot Equals One Acre One Foot Deep

Lake Volume : Volume of The Entire Water Body Expressed in U.S. Gallons

Influent Volume: Water Flowing into Lake that Requires Additional Aeration Capacity

GPM: Gallons of Water Pumped Per Minute

Gallons Pumped / Day: Total Gallons of Water Pumped by All Diffuser Disks Per Day

PSI Pounds Per Square Inch

CFM Cubic Feet Per Minute

# Diffuser Disks: Recommended Number of Diffuser Disks For Proper Aeration

Turnovers / Day: Number of Times Per Day the Entire Volume of The Water Body 

is Pumped From the Lake Bottom to The Lake's Surface

Vertex Water Features
2100 NW 33rd Street, Pompano Beach, Florida 33069
Tel:800-432-4302 / Fax:954-977-7877 
 www.vertexwaterfeatures.com
Copyright Vertex Water Features 2016

Agenda Page #114



SOLAR AERATOR INSTALLATION SERVICES CONTRACT

CUSTOMER NAME: Oak Creek CDD
SUBMITTED TO: Mr. Mark Vega
CONTRACT DATE: March 31, 2022
SUBMITTED BY: Chris Byrne
SERVICES: Sites 11A and 11B

This agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date indicated above, and is by and between
SOLitude Lake Management, LLC (“Solitude” or the “Company”) and the customer identified above (the
“Customer”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

1. The Services. SOLitude will provide services at the Customer’s property as described in Schedule A
attached hereto:

2. PAYMENT TERMS. The fee for the Solar Aeration Installation Services is $7,202.00. The Customer shall
pay 50% of this service fee upon execution of this Agreement.  The balance (remaining 50% of fee) will be
invoiced to Customer by SOLitude following completion of the Services.
For any work completed or materials in storage on the customer’s behalf at the end of each month, the
company will invoice and the customer will be responsible for paying the percent of the total work
completed as of that date, less any previous deposit paid.  Should the work performed be subject to any
local, state, or federal jurisdiction, agency, or other organization of authority for sales or other taxes or fees
in addition to those expressly covered by this contract, customer will be invoiced and responsible for
paying said additional taxes in addition to the fee above.  Customer agrees to pay all invoices within thirty
(30) days of invoice date.  The Customer will be liable for any returned check fees and any collection
costs, including reasonable attorney fees and court costs, for any invoices not otherwise timely paid, and
interest at the rate of 1% per month may be added to all unpaid invoices.  Company shall be reimbursed
by the Customer for any non-routine expenses, administrative fees, compliance fees, or any other similar
expense that are incurred as a result of requirements placed on the Company by the Customer that are
not covered specifically by the written specifications of this contract.

3. TERM AND EXPIRATION. This Agreement is for a one-time service as described in the attached
Schedule A.  Any additional services will be provided only upon additional terms as agreed to by the
parties in writing.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipient may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #115



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 2 of 6

4. DISCLAIMER. SOLitude is not responsible for the failure of any treatment, equipment installation, or
other work that result from dam or other structural failures, severe weather and storms, flooding, or other
acts of God that are outside of the control of SOLitude.
Customer understands and acknowledges that there are irrigation restrictions associated with many of the
products used to treat lakes and ponds.  The customer is responsible for notifying SOLitude in advance of
the contract signing and the start of the contract if they utilize any of the water in their lakes or ponds for
irrigation purposes.  The customer accepts full responsibility for any issues that may arise from the irrigation
of turf, ornamentals, trees, crops, or any other plants as a result of treated water being used by the
customer for irrigation without the consent or knowledge of SOLitude.
Although there is rarely direct fish toxicity with the products used for treatment when applied at the
labeled rate, or the installation and normal operation of the equipment we install, there is a risk under
certain circumstances of significant dissolved oxygen drops.  This risk is most severe in times of extremely
hot weather and warm water temperatures, as these are the conditions during which dissolved oxygen
levels are naturally at their lowest levels.  Oftentimes lakes and ponds will experience natural fish kills under
these conditions even if no work is performed.  Every effort, to include the method and timing of
application, the choice of products and equipment used, and the skill and training of the staff, is made to
avoid such problems.  However, the customer understands and accepts that there is always a slight risk of
the occurrence of adverse conditions outside the control of SOLitude that will result in the death of some
fish and other aquatic life.  The customer also understands and accepts that similar risks would remain
even if no work was performed.  The customer agrees to hold SOLitude harmless for any issues with fish or
other aquatic life which occur as described above, or are otherwise outside the direct control of the
SOLitude, unless there is willful negligence on the part of SOLitude.
While SOLitude Lake Management LLC makes every effort to thoroughly inspect the site before providing
this contract proposal or beginning any work, it is possible, without fault or negligence, that unforeseen
circumstances may arise, or that hidden conditions on the site might be found in the course of the
performance of the contract work, which would result in additional time or material costs that exceed this
contract pricing.  Should this occur, the customer will be notified of these unforeseen circumstances or
conditions and be responsible for the costs associated with remedying.  By signing this agreement, the
customer acknowledges that they have informed SOLitude Lake Management® of all known and
relevant current site conditions that would be reasonable to expect could affect our ability to successfully
complete the contract work.

5. INSURANCE AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Solitude will maintain general liability and property
damage insurance as necessary given the scope and nature of the Services. The Company will be
responsible for those damages, claims, causes of action, injuries or legal costs to the extent of its own
direct negligence or misconduct, and then only to an amount not to exceed the annual value of this
Agreement. In no event will any party to this Agreement be liable to the other for incidental,
consequential or purely economic damages.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #116



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 3 of 6

6. FORCE MAJEURE. The Company shall not be liable for any delay in performing the Services, nor
liable for any failure to provide the Services, due to any cause beyond its reasonable control.

7. ANTI-CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY. Each party represents that neither it nor anyone acting on its
behalf has offered, given, requested or accepted any undue financial or other advantage of any kind in
entering into this Agreement, and that it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to
corruption, competition and bribery in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

8. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws
of the state in which the Services are performed.

9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the subject matter and replaces any prior agreements or understandings, whether in writing or
otherwise. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by written agreement executed by
both parties. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is determined to be void, invalid, or
unenforceable, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be
affected.

10. NOTICE. Any written notice provided under this Agreement may be sent via overnight mail,
certified mail, hand delivery or electronic mail with delivery confirmation, to the individuals and addresses
listed below.

11. BINDING. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the legal
representatives and successors of the parties.

12. FUEL/TRANSPORTATION SURCHARGE. Like many other companies that are impacted by the price of
gasoline, a rise in gasoline prices may necessitate a fuel surcharge. As such, the Company reserves the
right to add a fuel surcharge to Customer's invoice for any increase in the cost of fuel as measured above
the same time period in the prior year (by the National U.S. Average Motor Gasoline-Regular Fuel Price per
Gallon Index reported by the U.S. Department of Energy). The surcharge may be adjusted monthly (up or
down) with the price of gasoline.

13. E-Verify. Solitude Lake Management LLC utilizes the federal E-Verify program in contracts with
public employers as required by Florida State law, and acknowledges all the provisions of Florida Statute
448.095 are incorporated herein by reference and hereby certifies it will comply with the same.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #117



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 4 of 6

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED:

SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT, LLC. OAK CREEK CDD

Signature: ______________________________ Signature:  ______________________________

Printed Name:  __________________________ Printed Name:  __________________________

Title:  ____________________________ Title:  _____________________________

Date:  _________________________ Date:  __________________________

Please Remit All Payments to: Customer’s Address for Notice Purposes:

1320 Brookwood Drive Suite H ____________________________________________
Little Rock AR 72202

____________________________________________
Please Mail All Contracts to:

____________________________________________
2844 Crusader Circle, Suite 450
Virginia Beach, VA 23453

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #118



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 5 of 6

SCHEDULE A - SOLAR AERATION SYSTEM INSTALLATION SERVICES

Aeration System Install:
1. Company will install the following submersed air diffused aeration system:

Vertex BriteStar 70-3 3XL1 Solar Aeration System
Includes: Two (2) 250W Solar Panels with Panel Racking

Digital 24V BLDC Digital Compressor
Pressure Gauge and Pressure Relief Valve
Powder Coated Aluminum Cabinet with cooling fan
Three (3) Self Sinking Stainless Steel AirStation
( Single Membrane / Self Cleaning)
500 ft. underwater self-weighted air delivery tubing (.58” ID)
One-Eight (8) foot Galvanized Pole to mount the Solar Panels
All labor and parts necessary for proper installation

2. Air Diffusers will be evenly placed throughout the lake in the deepest areas possible to
provide for uniform coverage and to maximize the benefits of aeration on the lake.

Warranty:
1. Company warrants that all installation work will be done in a safe and professional

manner.
2. Manufacturer warrants system for three (3) years from the date of installation against

any defects in materials and workmanship.
3. Manufacturer warrants Air Station Membrane Diffusers for five (5) years from the date of

installation against any defects in materials and workmanship.
4. Company warrants all labor and parts necessary for installation of the fountain aeration

system for a period of one (1) year from the date of installation.
5. The manufacturer’s warranty and the SŌLitude Lake Management® warranty will be

voided if:
a. Any person not specifically authorized by the manufacturer and by SŌLitude

Lake Management® performs any service, repair, or other work to the aeration
system during the warranty period.

b. The aeration system is used in any manner inconsistent with its intended use or in

Permitting (when applicable):
1. SOLitude staff will be responsible for the following:

a. Obtaining any Federal, state, or local permits required to perform any work
specified in this contract where applicable.

b. Attending any public hearings or meetings with regulators as required in support
of the permitting process.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #119



Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
Oak Creek CDD (8172) - CB/EB
Page 6 of 6

c. Filing of any notices or year-end reports with the appropriate agency as required
by any related permit.

d. Notifying the Customer of any restrictions or special conditions put on the site with
respect to any permit received, where applicable.

Customer Responsibilities (when applicable):
1. Customer will be responsible for the following:

a. Providing information required for the permit application process upon request.
b. Providing Certified Abutters List for abutter notification where required.
c. Perform any public filings or recordings with any agency or commission

associated with the permitting process, if required.
d. Compliance with any other special requirements or conditions required by the

local municipality.
e. Compliance and enforcement of temporary water-use restrictions where

applicable.

General Qualifications:
1. Company will furnish the personnel, vehicles, boats, equipment, materials, and other

items required to provide the foregoing at its expense.

Competitively Sensitive & Proprietary Materials – The information contained herein is the intellectual property of SŌLitude Lake Management.
Recipients may not disclose to any outside party any proprietary information, processes, or pricing contained in this document or any of its
attachments without the prior written consent of SŌLitude Lake Management. This document is provided to the recipient in good faith and it shall
be the responsibility of the recipient to keep the information contained herein confidential.

888.480.LAKE (5253) | SOLITUDELAKEMANAGEMENT.COM

Agenda Page #120



5Cib 

Agenda Page #121



Estimate
Date

4/12/2022

Estimate #

34

Name / Address

    Oak Creek CDD

Ace Courts Incorporated

2421 Kumquat Drive
Edgewater, FL 32141

Project

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

Clean as necessary 0.00 0.00
Machine sand entire surface with 16 grit sandpaper 0.00 0.00
*Patch cracks with acrylic patch material 0.00 0.00
Patch to 1/8" after surrounding areas have dried. (Court must have
proper slope 1" every 10ft to allow for proper drainage.

0.00 0.00

Machine sand cracks and patched low areas to court level 0.00 0.00
Apply (1) coat acrylic resurfacer to entire surface 0.00 0.00
Apply (2) coats color to entire surface as follows:
Interior - color Interior Light Green and exterior Dark Green

0.00 0.00

Reline 7,180.00 7,180.00

$7,180.00

Agenda Page #122



5Cic 

Agenda Page #123



Estimate
Date 3/21/2022

Estimate # 76752

Submitted To:
Oak Creek CDD
c/o Inframark
210 N University Dr #702
Coral Springs, FL 33071

PO #

LMP REPRESENTATIVE

FCL

Work Order #

OWNER / AGENT

DATE

  PO Box 267
  Seffner, FL 33583
  O:  813-757-6500     
  F:   813-757-6501

TOTAL

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL:  The above prices, scope of work and terms and conditions are hereby satisfactorily agreed upon.  LMP, Inc. has been authorized
to perform the work as outlined and payment will be made as outlined above.  The above pricing does not include any unforeseen modifications to the said irrigation
system that could not be reasonably accounted for prior to job start.  All plant material carries a one (1) year warranty provided LMP, Inc. is performing landscape
maintenance services to the area installed or enhanced at the time of installation.  If not, then there is no warranty on the plant material.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

LMP reserves the right to withdraw this proposal if not accepted within 30 days of the date listed above.  Any alteration or deviation to scope of work involving
additional costs must be agreed upon in writing as a separate proposal or change order to this proposal. Periodic invoices may be submitted if job is substantial in
nature with final invoice being submitted at completion of project.  Any work performed requiring more than 5 days to complete is subject to progressive payments
as portions of the work are completed.  No finance charge will be imposed if the total of said work is paid in full within 30 days of invoice date.  If not paid in full
within 30 days, then customer is subject to finance charges on the balance of the work from the invoice date at a rate of 1.5% per month until paid.  LMP shall have
the right to stop work under this contract until all outstanding amounts including finance charges are paid in full.  Payments will be applied to the oldest invoices.

DESCRIPTION QTY COST TOTAL

 Flush-cut  Oak Trees, Stump Grind, Soil and Sod,  and
    Replace with trees along Cliffcreek Court. 

 All work includes, clean-up, removal, and disposal of
    debris generated during the course of work. 

  Crape Myrtle - multi trunk 15gal 35 175.00 6,125.00
   Sod - Bahia 3 pallets 3 400.00 1,200.00

  Soil - Top Soil (Bulk) 5 CY 5 73.75 368.75
 Stump Grind 35 50.00 1,750.00
 Tree removal (flush) 35 200.00 7,000.00

$16,443.75

Agenda Page #124



5Cid 

Agenda Page #125



Estimate
Date 3/22/2022

Estimate # 76768

Submitted To:
Oak Creek CDD
c/o Inframark
210 N University Dr #702
Coral Springs, FL 33071

PO #

LMP REPRESENTATIVE

SM-PI

Work Order #Spring Oak Trail.

OWNER / AGENT

DATE

  PO Box 267
  Seffner, FL 33583
  O:  813-757-6500     
  F:   813-757-6501

TOTAL

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL:  The above prices, scope of work and terms and conditions are hereby satisfactorily agreed upon.  LMP, Inc. has been authorized
to perform the work as outlined and payment will be made as outlined above.  The above pricing does not include any unforeseen modifications to the said irrigation
system that could not be reasonably accounted for prior to job start.  All plant material carries a one (1) year warranty provided LMP, Inc. is performing landscape
maintenance services to the area installed or enhanced at the time of installation.  If not, then there is no warranty on the plant material.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

LMP reserves the right to withdraw this proposal if not accepted within 30 days of the date listed above.  Any alteration or deviation to scope of work involving
additional costs must be agreed upon in writing as a separate proposal or change order to this proposal. Periodic invoices may be submitted if job is substantial in
nature with final invoice being submitted at completion of project.  Any work performed requiring more than 5 days to complete is subject to progressive payments
as portions of the work are completed.  No finance charge will be imposed if the total of said work is paid in full within 30 days of invoice date.  If not paid in full
within 30 days, then customer is subject to finance charges on the balance of the work from the invoice date at a rate of 1.5% per month until paid.  LMP shall have
the right to stop work under this contract until all outstanding amounts including finance charges are paid in full.  Payments will be applied to the oldest invoices.

DESCRIPTION QTY COST TOTAL

1/2 inch coupling 33 0.44 14.52
1/2 inch flex pipe 660 0.80 528.00
1/2 inch male adapter 33 0.77 25.41
Raibird adjustable bubbler 33 2.21 72.93
Labor: 1 man @ $ 45.00 per hour 66 45.00 2,970.00

Extend 33 tree bubblers under sidewalk to new tree
locations.

$3,610.86

Agenda Page #126



5Cii

Agenda Page #127



From: Vega, Mark
To: Slaughter, Mona
Subject: Oak Creek CDD June agenda DM Discussion of Proposed Access System
Date: Saturday, May 28, 2022 11:41:46 PM
Attachments: Oak Creek CDD - 3130 (1).pdf

From: Thomas Giella <thomas@completeit.io> 
Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2022 5:51 PM
To: Vega, Mark <mark.vega@inframark.com>
Subject: Oak Creek ACS - Revised

Hey Mark,

Attached is the estimate for the system. Changes from previous estimates. 

No charge for data migration since they would be starting over

Add 300 keyfobs or key cards to the system

Replacing all the readers so that they are under warranty and I know they work with our more cost effective

key cards and key fobs

No more 4G backup since the network is stable onsite

No mention of using the Brivo App since they would only use the key card and key fob.

Breakdown:

Brivo panels, new locking power supply, labor. $3,259.95
4 New HID Prox Readers $600
300 Key fobs or key cards $1050 ($3.50 each)
Brivo Monthly Data License $56 (paid to Complete I.T.)
Inframark Training up to 2-hours (No Charge)

This would remove the need for the onsite laptop. The data would be stored in the cloud and
onsite. System still works in case of an internet outage. System would use the battery backup
system already onsite.

Thank you,
Thomas Giella

Complete I.T. Corp
(813) 444-4355
https://completeit.io
2664 Cypress Ridge Blvd.
Suite 103
Wesley Chapel, FL 33544

Agenda Page #128

mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:mona.slaughter@inframark.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/completeit.io__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!Wzp1fY_EP3H1rTEaY7tAEbp4frDWYYyP2qDwOcm8kVH6rXg7UvdHoJqRZuOL3V1vfqZFrzOCafyp_g5uLkckGA$



Oak Creek CDD
34300 Spring Oak Trail 
Zephyrhills, FL 33545


Estimate # 3130
Estimate Date 05-12-22
Sales Team Member


Total $4,965.95


                                            (Estimate Valid For 30-Days)


      Customer Contact Information:


2664 Cypress Ridge Blvd | Suite 103
Wesley Chapel, FL. 33544
https://completeit.io
(813) 444-4355


Subtotal $4,965.95
Tax (if applicable) $0.00


Estimate Total $4,965.95


Item Description Unit Cost Quantity Line Total


Brivo Onair ACS300
Control Panel


Brivo Onair ACS300 IP door controller with WiFi & BLE for
up to two (2) readers. Requires PoE, PoE+ or 12vdc
Linear Power Supply. Reader, Battery & Power Supply,
Not Included.


$990.00 2.0 $1,980.00


HID MiniProx Black HID Prox, no keypad. Potted reader suitable for indoor or
outdoor use. Black cover.


$150.00 4.0 $600.00


Tech Labor Hourly Labor Service | Minimum 1-hour $125.00 8.0 $1,000.00


Altronix Power
Supply 5-Door Non-
Fused


Altronix M series access control power supply/chargers
are specifically designed for use with access control
systems and accessories. These units convert a 115VAC,
60Hz input into five (5) individually protected 12VDC or
24VDC outputs. Each output will route power to a variety
of access control hardware devices including Mag Locks,
Electric Strikes, Magnetic Door Holders, etc. These
outputs will operate in both Fail-Safe and Fail-Secure
modes. Controlled trigger input is achieved through
normally open [NO] or normally closed [NC] supervised
input or the polarity reversal from an FACP (Fire Alarm
Control Panel). A form “C” dry output relay enables HVAC
Shutdown, Elevator Recall or may be used to trigger
auxiliary devices.


$279.95 1.0 $279.95


Brivo Onair Tier 2
Reader Monthly
Data Plan


Brivo Onair Tier 2 Reader Monthly Data Plan (For each
reader from 3-12 on the account) [Per card reader, per 2N
device]


$14.00 4.0 $56.00


CIT ACS Prox Cards CIT ACS Prox Cards/fobs $3.50 300.0 $1,050.00


THIS IS ONLY AN ESTIMATE
 


Please refer to contract or Complete I.T. Corp website for additional


details including but not limited to warranty information.











Oak Creek CDD
34300 Spring Oak Trail 
Zephyrhills, FL 33545

Estimate # 3130
Estimate Date 05-12-22
Sales Team Member

Total $4,965.95

                                            (Estimate Valid For 30-Days)

      Customer Contact Information:

2664 Cypress Ridge Blvd | Suite 103
Wesley Chapel, FL. 33544
https://completeit.io
(813) 444-4355

Subtotal $4,965.95
Tax (if applicable) $0.00

Estimate Total $4,965.95

Item Description Unit Cost Quantity Line Total

Brivo Onair ACS300
Control Panel

Brivo Onair ACS300 IP door controller with WiFi & BLE for
up to two (2) readers. Requires PoE, PoE+ or 12vdc
Linear Power Supply. Reader, Battery & Power Supply,
Not Included.

$990.00 2.0 $1,980.00

HID MiniProx Black HID Prox, no keypad. Potted reader suitable for indoor or
outdoor use. Black cover.

$150.00 4.0 $600.00

Tech Labor Hourly Labor Service | Minimum 1-hour $125.00 8.0 $1,000.00

Altronix Power
Supply 5-Door Non-
Fused

Altronix M series access control power supply/chargers
are specifically designed for use with access control
systems and accessories. These units convert a 115VAC,
60Hz input into five (5) individually protected 12VDC or
24VDC outputs. Each output will route power to a variety
of access control hardware devices including Mag Locks,
Electric Strikes, Magnetic Door Holders, etc. These
outputs will operate in both Fail-Safe and Fail-Secure
modes. Controlled trigger input is achieved through
normally open [NO] or normally closed [NC] supervised
input or the polarity reversal from an FACP (Fire Alarm
Control Panel). A form “C” dry output relay enables HVAC
Shutdown, Elevator Recall or may be used to trigger
auxiliary devices.

$279.95 1.0 $279.95

Brivo Onair Tier 2
Reader Monthly
Data Plan

Brivo Onair Tier 2 Reader Monthly Data Plan (For each
reader from 3-12 on the account) [Per card reader, per 2N
device]

$14.00 4.0 $56.00

CIT ACS Prox Cards CIT ACS Prox Cards/fobs $3.50 300.0 $1,050.00

THIS IS ONLY AN ESTIMATE
 

Please refer to contract or Complete I.T. Corp website for additional

details including but not limited to warranty information.

Agenda Page #129



Agenda Page #130



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5Ciii. 
  

Agenda Page #131



From: Vega, Mark
To: Slaughter, Mona
Subject: Oak Creek CDD - June Agenda item under DM - Discussion of Lighting Alert System
Date: Friday, June 3, 2022 12:07:01 PM

 

From: Thomas Giella <thomas@completeit.io> 
Sent: Friday, June 3, 2022 11:53 AM
To: Vega, Mark <mark.vega@inframark.com>
Subject: Lighting Alert System
 
Hi Mark,
 
Complete I.T. appreciates Oak Creek allowing our company to prove point of concept with our Lightning Alert
System and Automated PA system since October of last year. Over the past 8 years, we have made many
improvements to the system thanks to the feedback of Inframark, Oak Creek, and other communities.
 
Starting in August 2022, the board of Oak Creek will need to decide if they want to keep the system in place or if
they would like to cancel the service solution. The cost breakdown is the following:
 
- Automated PA System for closing announcements each night $125 per month
- Lightning Alert System $50 add-on
 
We have had to raise the price from our initial pricing due to the fact that the Lightning API has gone up in price.
Thankfully, we don't see another raise in pricing ANYTIME soon thereafter.
 
There is no price for installation of the system, and we would consider the equipment a rental. Meaning if the PA
speaker, PA amplifier, or our controller stops working, we are responsible for the equipment as well as the
technician time to replace it. Going forward with other properties the equipment installation is around $850 per
location.
 
Essentially by allowing Complete I.T. to prove our point of concept they have saved $2,950. if the community does
not want to proceed with our system, we will simply remove the equipment in August 2022.

Mark, if you feel August is too soon, please let me know your thoughts.

 
 
Thank you,
Thomas Giella
 
Complete I.T. Corp
(813) 444-4355
https://completeit.io
2664 Cypress Ridge Blvd.
Suite 103
Wesley Chapel, FL 33544

Agenda Page #132

mailto:mark.vega@inframark.com
mailto:mona.slaughter@inframark.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/completeit.io__;!!GqRiWhUXVfE!R5QdxHigXG29t5k_lrQqY0kmNOrkHio1KyqXxfN2gzCjJpCUGrc1W8eN504-0p_7S2GVt1spPv5JYNYyRM-sWQ$


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5Civ. 
  

Agenda Page #133



 

Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors | Florida Insurance Alliance | RiskServices@EgisAdvisors.com 

 

Special Districts 

Best Practices for Community Dog Parks
Dog parks are one of the fastest growing amenities in 

many communities, fueled by ever-growing dog 

ownership by American households.  Highly attractive to 

residents and visitors, dog parks provide a high value as 

they offer dogs exercise, socialization (for the dogs and 

humans alike), energy release, and safety away from 

busy roads or sidewalks.  People benefit from the parks 

as well helping to build a tight knit community, 

promoting an active lifestyle, and potentially lowering 

certain health risks.  

 

Communities Agree 

In 2018, the National Recreation and Park 

Association (NRPA), found that 91% Americans believe 

dog parks provide benefits to the communities they 

serve. Availability of dog parks is especially popular 

among millennials (94%) and Gen Xers (92%) followed by 

baby boomers (89%) who agree dog parks provide 

benefits to communities. 

Dog parks are good for people with disabilities to get out 

of their homes so they can take their dogs to make new 

friends.   

91% of Americans believe dog parks 
provide benefits to the communities 
they serve. 

Risks Associated With Dog Parks 

With these benefits though come some challenges that 

have become more prevalent in the past 2-3 years as 

evidenced by an increase in incident reporting for both 

dog and human injuries.  These incidents range from dog 

fights and subsequent injuries, dogs escaping the park, 

natural Florida wildlife and dog interaction, dogs running 

into people and knocking them over, to people stepping 

into holes that the dogs have dug. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #134

https://www.nrpa.org/
https://www.nrpa.org/


Best Practices for Dog Park Communities 

 

Special Districts 

What Can You Do To Mitigate The Hazards? 

We get many questions from districts about the “right 

way” to implement a dog park and while there is not one 

best answer, the intent of this section is to provide best 

practices and guidelines from a risk management 

perspective.  

Informational signs or usage rules are a great resource to 

rely on if or when something happens. Some 

recommendations for signage include:  

• Use at your own risk language posted. For example: 
“Park users assume all risks related to park use”  
“Owners are responsible and liable for the actions 
and behaviors of their dogs at all times”  
“You are legally responsible for your dog's behavior, 
and any injuries or damages he/she causes.” 

• Dawn to Dusk restrictions for areas without an 
artificial light source 

• Leash dogs before entering and leaving park 

• Dogs may not be left unattended 

• No aggressive dogs 

• Adult supervision recommended for children or 
children under 12 years must be accompanied by an 
adult.  

• A handler is responsible filling in any holes the dog 
digs while in the park.  

• Handler is responsible for picking up pet waste 

 

Additionally, design of the park itself can assist with 

mitigating negative dog vs dog activity: 

Separate Play Areas  

It can be dangerous to take a small dog to a park 
frequented by large dogs. The large dogs may not mean 
to hurt the smaller dogs, but they can play too rough, or 
they may see the small dog as a prey animal and pick it 
up and shake it, which can be fatal. Exceptional dog parks 
have an enclosed area specifically for small dogs. This 
keeps them safe, yet still allows them to socialize and 
interact, which is especially important for smaller dogs. 

 

 

Size  

While any park that allows dogs could be called a dog 
park, the minimum is generally one quarter to one half 
acre to as large as possible. Size is important because if 
dogs become too crowded, it is much easier for a “bully” 
or a pack of dogs to corner and harass another dog. 
Fights tend to break out more often under crowded 
conditions. 

Gates and Fences 

 A double-gate entry system includes a gated waiting 

area for the dog and human to enter, remove the dog’s 

leash, and then open the gate to the main off-leash area, 

reversing the process for exiting. This ensures that 

unplanned escapes will be kept to a minimum, allows for 

leashing and unleashing in a separate area, and enables 

dog owners to manage the transition into and out of the 

dog park. Magnetic gate latches or similar means to 

ensure gates close is also important. Dogs have escaped 

from doors left open or openings in the fence or gate as 

shown below and attacked other dogs.   

 

Agenda Page #135



Best Practices for Dog Park Communities 

 

Special Districts 

Risk Management Best Practices 

The district should routinely maintain the park itself and 

surrounding area including collection and removal of 

debris, restocking plastic waste disposal bags, repairing 

signs, filling holes, repairing fences, irrigation, and 

maintenance of the surfacing. 

Post rules in several visible locations; keep the signs well-

maintained. 

Keeping well documented records for the routine 

maintenance is also imperative.  Being also to refer to 

documentation for when the last hole was filled, or the 

gate repaired is very helpful when handling any claims 

that may be presented.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TIM SHORTT/FLORIDA TODAY/VIERA EAST CDD 

 

 

 

 

 

Links and Resources 

American Kennel Club Guide to Establishing a Dog Park 

in Your Community: 

http://images.akc.org/pdf/GLEG01.pdf 

Laws and Regulations Applicable to Dog Parks: 

https://www.animallaw.info/article/designing-model-

dog-park-law 

NRPA Guide to Designing and Managing Innovative Dog 

Parks: https://www.nrpa.org/parks-recreation-

magazine/2018/november/designing-and-managing-

innovative-dog-parks/ 

Dog Park Design, Planning, and Management: 

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/344612899_

Dog_park_design_planning_and_management 

Separating small and large dogs in dog parks: 

https://www.dog-on-it-parks.com/blog/dog-park-design-

cosiderations-large-small-dog-areas/ 

Ten tips for planning and building a dog park: 

http://www.doodycalls.com/blog/ten-tips-for-planning-

and-building-a-dog-park-in-your-community/ 

Contact Us! 

If you have any additional questions on dog parks, risk 

management, or if you would like to schedule an on-site 

risk assessment for your district, please contact us at 

riskservices@egisadvisors.com or 321-273-2047. 

Agenda Page #136

http://images.akc.org/pdf/GLEG01.pdf
https://www.animallaw.info/article/designing-model-dog-park-law
https://www.animallaw.info/article/designing-model-dog-park-law
https://www.nrpa.org/parks-recreation-magazine/2018/november/designing-and-managing-innovative-dog-parks/
https://www.nrpa.org/parks-recreation-magazine/2018/november/designing-and-managing-innovative-dog-parks/
https://www.nrpa.org/parks-recreation-magazine/2018/november/designing-and-managing-innovative-dog-parks/
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/344612899_Dog_park_design_planning_and_management
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/344612899_Dog_park_design_planning_and_management
https://www.dog-on-it-parks.com/blog/dog-park-design-cosiderations-large-small-dog-areas/
https://www.dog-on-it-parks.com/blog/dog-park-design-cosiderations-large-small-dog-areas/
http://www.doodycalls.com/blog/ten-tips-for-planning-and-building-a-dog-park-in-your-community/
http://www.doodycalls.com/blog/ten-tips-for-planning-and-building-a-dog-park-in-your-community/
mailto:riskservices@egisadvisors.com


5D
 

Agenda Page #137



    

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 State Road 54, New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

 
   

 

Prepared by: Virgil Stoltz, VP & General Manager 
Inspected: May 31, 2022 

Agenda Page #138

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

1 
 

General Information: 
 
Blue Water Aquatics (BWA) took over the Oak Creek CDD aquatic maintenance 
beginning in May 2022.  
 
The previous aquatic vendor did BWA no favors, leaving behind some 
challenges/problems.  Some were only minor problems, but a couple of problems 
were severe and will take BWA a couple of months to get those problems turned 
around. 
 
Listed below are some notes taken on May 31, 2022: 
  

Agenda Page #139

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

2 
 

 
 

 

  

Pond 1 

POND 1 water level was low by a foot or so. Bluegreen algal mats were scattered around the 
shore margins and some mats broken up and floating throughout the pond. Bluegreen algae are 
often tough to control, and they are being addressed by using Captain XTR Algaecide. Because 
Bluegreen algae can often have a gelatinous sheath around the cell wall of the algae, it can be 
tough getting the active algaecide (Copper ions) through that wall. Captain XTR has a built-in 
surfactant that helps the copper get through those tough walls.  
 
There is also some Slender Spikerush growing up from the bottom along the shore margins and 
that aquatic plant is our toughest challenge to control. June treatment will include using 
ProcellaCOR, which is the newest tool in our arsenal of herbicides.   

Agenda Page #140

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

3 
 

  

Pond 2A  

Pond 2A – Some clumps of Torpedo Grass were growing out from the shorelines. It was treated 
using Polaris herbicide and although it works slowly this herbicide will give us some residual effects 
thus helping control shoreline grasses/weeds. 

Agenda Page #141

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

4 
 

 

 

  

Pond 2B  

Pond 2B – One clump of Cattails was at the south end of the pond and was treated. They should be 
dead within another week or so. 

Agenda Page #142

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

5 
 

 

 

 

 

Sump 4  

S4 – This sump was almost dried up today and what water was there had filamentous algae on it. A 
copper treatment was done, and the algae were starting to die before leaving the property that 
afternoon. One Primrose Willow bush was also manually removed from this sump. 

Agenda Page #143

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

6 
 

 

Sumps S1, S2, and S3 had some 
Torpedo Grass and algae growing 
and were treated for May 2022. 

S1 

S2 

S3
 

Agenda Page #144

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

7 
 

 

 

         

 

 
 
 

  

Pond 3 - The Pennywort growing 
along exposed shore margin was 
turning yellow from our previous 
treatment and should die off within 
a week or so. Polaris herbicide was 
used which works slowly on plants 
but gives longer lasting control than 
any Aquatic Glyphosates. 

Pond 6 - This pond also has 
Bluegreen Algae on it and being 
treated with Captain XTR 
Algaecide. 

Agenda Page #145

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

8 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Pond 8A - 
The pond had considerable 
amount of algae growth and 
was treated again today. 

Pond 9 - 
This pond has a considerable 
amount of Torpedo Grass growing 
at the north end mixed into the 
desirable aquatic plants. The 
herbicide TIGR will have to be used 
next month to control the Torpedo 
Grass without impacting the 
desirable aquatic plants. 

Agenda Page #146

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

9 
 

 

 
 

 
 
  

Pond 8A - 
The pond had considerable 
amount of algae growth and 
was treated again today. 

Pond 9 - 
This pond has a considerable 
amount of Torpedo Grass growing 
at the north end mixed into the 
desirable aquatic plants. The 
herbicide TIGR will have to be used 
next month to control the Torpedo 
Grass without impacting the 
desirable aquatic plants. 

Agenda Page #147

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

10 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Pond 10 - 
Has some exposed Slender 
Spikerush on the exposed 
pond banks/bottom. This 
weed is tough to control as 
mentioned above but if it is 
exposed it is very easily 
controlled. It should be 
turning brown/dying within 
a week or so. 

Pond 18 - 
This pond has a floating 
water fern (Azolla) on it 
that is reddish brown in 
color. The Azolla was 
treated today using Clipper 
Herbicide and should drop 
off the surface in 7 – 10 
days. 

Agenda Page #148

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

11 
 

 
 

 
 
  

Pond 22 - 
Today it had considerable 
amounts of algae growing on 
the surface and was treated 
using algaecides. The algae 
should die off in 7 – 10 days 
and BWA will make sure to 
follow up on the problem 
next month. 

Pond 24 - 
One clump of one of the 
newest invasive grasses 
(West Indian Marsh Grass, 
WIMG) that is roaring 
through Pasco County 
wetlands and ponds was 
treated today. Hopefully 
BWA can keep this new 
invasive grass at bay by 
actively addressing it when 
found on site. 

Agenda Page #149

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com


 
 

Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. 
5119 SR-54 New Port Richey, FL 34652 

www.bluewateraquaticsinc.com | office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com | T: 727-842-2100 
 

12 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pond 457 Littoral Shelf - 
This shelf needs some serious control measures done on Cattails, Torpedo Grass, and Primrose 
Willow. The shelf is nearly dry so an ATV will be utilized to travel out onto the shelf and the 
unwanted growth will be treated with Aquatic Glyphosate. 

Agenda Page #150

mailto:office@bluewateraquaticsinc.com

	Oak Creek 6.20.22 Agenda vega
	4TH
	4A
	4A OCCDD _ 3.21.22 Minutes _ mls
	4B
	4B Oak Creek Financials Apr_22
	4C
	4C Oak Creek CDD Final Audit Report FY21
	4D
	4D CDD Labor Rates_7-1-22
	4E
	4E 1 of 3  Oak Creek CDD _ RFP Sidewalk Grinding
	4E 2 of 3 Proposal - Oak Creek  CDD map
	4E 3 of 3 Proposal - Oak Creek  CDD map
	4F
	4F 1 of 3 Oak Creek Pressure Washing
	4F 2 of 3 Estimate_2720_from_Heat_Wave_Pressure_Washing_LLC
	4F 3 of 3 terms of service 20220307 for oak creek cdd only
	4G
	4G _ Pasco Districts - Registered Voters
	4H
	4H _ Triangle Pool INcrease _ 20220601081914806
	4I
	4I _ 34300 SPRING OAK TRAIL WESLEY CHAPEL FLORIDA 33545 MARK VEGA signed
	5TH
	5C
	5Ci
	5Cia
	Oak Creek CDD RE_ Ponds treatment behind 6706 b...
	5Cia 1 0f 4 Oak Creek CDD 11 A B Map
	5Cia 2 0f 4 Oak Creek CDD - 11AB Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
	5Cia 3 0f 4 Oak Creek CDD 11 A B Calcs
	5Cia 4 0f 4  Oak Creek CDD - 11AB Solar Aeration Installation Services Contract
	5Cib
	5Cib Est_34_from_Ace_Courts_Incorporated_18052
	5Cic
	5Cic Oak Creek CDD Tree Work on Cliffcreek Court
	5Cid
	5Cid Oak Creek CDD Irrigation Work in Conjunction with Tree Work
	5Cii
	Oak Creek CDD June agenda DM Discussion of Prop...
	5Cii _ Oak Creek CDD - 3130 (1) _ Access System
	5Ciii
	Oak Creek CDD - June Agenda item under DM - Dis...
	5Civ
	5Civ _ RI - Best Practices for Community Dog Parks May 2022
	5D
	5D _ Oak Creek CDD - May 2022 Monthly Aquatic Report



